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November 23, 2011

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Tinton Falls Schools

County of Monmouth, New Jersey

Dear Board Members:

We are pleased to present to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Tinton
Falls School District (District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. This CAFR includes the District’s
Basic Financial Statement prepared in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board
Statement No. 34. The District has adopted this financial reporting model which we believe will provide
all users of this document with more useful financial and statistical information. Responsibility for both
the accuracy of the data and completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures,
rests with the management of the Board of Education (Board). To the best of our knowledge and belief,
the data presented in this report is accurate in all material respects and is reported in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the District. This report will provide the
taxpayers of the Tinton Falls Schoo! District with comprehensive financial data in a format enabling them
to gain an understanding of the School District’s financial affairs.

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is presented in four sections as follows:

» The Introductory Section contains a table of contents, Letter of Transmittal, List of Principal
Officials, and an Organizational Chart of the School District;

» The Financial Section begins with the Independent Auditors’ Report and includes the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic Financial Statements and Notes providing an
overview of the School District's financial position and operating results, and other schedules
providing detailed budgetary information;

* The Statistical Section includes selected economic and demographic information, financial trends
and the fiscal capacity of the School district, generally presented on a multi-year basis;

* The Single Audit Section — The District is required to undergo an annual single audit in conformity
with the provisions of the Single Audit act of 1996, as amended, the U.S. Office of Management
and budget circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit Organizations”,
and the State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB< “Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal
Grants, State Grants and State Aid". Information related to this single audit, including the
independent auditor’s report on the internal control and compliance with applicable laws,
regulations, contracts and grants, along with findings and questioned costs, are included in the
single audit section of this report.

1. Reporting Entity and it Services: Tinton Falls School District is an independent reporting entity
within the criteria adopted by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) as
established by GASB Statement No. 14. All funds and account groups of the District are included
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2.

in this report. The Tinton Falls Board of Education and all its schools constitute the District's
reporting entity.

The District provides a full range of educational services appropriate to grade levels K through 8,
as well as a pre-school handicapped program. These include regular as well as handicapped
students. The District completed the 2010-2011 fiscal year with an enroliment of 1,572 which is
thirteen (-13) students below the previous year's ending enrollment. The following details the
changes in the student enrollment of the District over the last 15 years.

Enrollment
Fiscal Year Student Enrollment Percent Change
1995-1996 1,669 + .66%
1996-1997 1,751 +4.91%
1997-1998 1.805 +3.08%
1998-1999 1,814 +4.99%
1999-2000 1,908 +5.24%
2000-2001 1,867 -2.25%
2001-2002 1,810 -3.15%
2002-2003 1,729 - 4.68%
2003-2004 1,761 +1.85%
2004-2005 1,610 - 8.57%
2005-2006 1,602 -0.005%
2006-2007 1,577 -0.016%
2007-2008 1,578 +0.0007%
2008-2009 1,632 +0.034%
2009-2010 1,585 - 0.028%
2010-2011 1,672 - 0.008%

Economic Condition and Qutlcok: The Tinton Falls area is still experiencing a period of
steadiness which is expected to continue due to the economy of the country at this time.

The economic conditions have been consistent with that of the country.

Fort Monmouth will be closing completely in September, 2011. The district is anticipating a small
decrease in enrollment based on families who relocate due to the closure.

There is a concern regarding the future civilian housing proposed at Earle Naval Weapons
Station which will have an impact on any school district's student enroliment and finances. Efforts
continue to be made by the Board of Education to limit the exposure to the Tinton Falls School
District and their taxpayers.

Major Initiatives: As a result of a comprehensive review of educational curriculum programs,
instruction and services within the district, the following initiatives have been reviewed and or
expanded:

"TOGETHER TOWéRD TOMORROW™
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Curriculum Development in the areas of Mathematics (K-3), Comprehensive Health and
Physical Education, Technology and Social Studies.

The introduction and use of electronic Grade Book and Parent Portal.

Continued integration of classroom Technologies including interactive white boards and
ipads (at Tinton Falls Middle School).

The continuation of Professional Learning Communities for all teachers and support staff.

The upgrade and modification of the Tinton Falls School Media Center to create a 21%
Century Learning environment.

Internal Accounting Controls: Management of the district is responsible for establishing and
maintaining an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the District are
protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to
allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). The internal control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance
recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and
(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal and state financial assistance, the District also is responsible for ensuring
that an adequate internal control structure is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws
and regulations related to those programs. This internal control structure is also subject to
periodic evaluation by the District management.

As part of the District’s single audit described earlier, tests are made to determine the adequacy
of the internal control structure, including that portion related to federal and state financial
assistance programs, as well as to determine that the District has complied with applicable laws
and regulations.

Budgetary Controls: In addition to internal accounting controls, the District maintains budgetary
controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to ensure compliance with legal provisions
embodied in the annual appropriated budget approved by the voters of the municipalities. Annual
appropriated budgets are adopted for the general fund, the special revenue fund, and the debt
service fund. Project-length budgets are approved for the capital improvements accounted for in
the capital projects fund. The final budget amount as amended for the fiscal year is reflected in
the financial section.

An encumbrance accounting system is used to record outstanding purchase commitments on a
line items basis. Open encumbrances at year-end are either canceled or are included as
reappropriations of fund balance in the subsequent year. Those amounts to be reappropriated
are reported as reservations of fund balance at June 30, 2011.

Accounting System and Reports: The District’'s accounting records reflect generally accepted
accounting principles, as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
"TOGETHER TOWARD TOMORROW™
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(GASB). The accounting system of the District is organized on the basis of funds and account
groups. These funds and account groups are explained in “Notes to the Financial Statements”,
Note 1.

7. Cash Management: The investment policy of the District is guided in large part by state statute
as detailed in “Notes {o the Financial Statements”, Note 2. The District has adopted a cash
management pfan which requires it to deposit public funds in public depositories protected from
loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act (GUDPA). GUDPA
was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit with a failed
banking institution in new Jersey. The law requires governmental units to deposit public funds
only in public depositories located in New Jersey, where the funds are secured in accordance
with the Act.

8. Risk Management: The Board carries various forms of insurance, included but not limited to
general liability, automobile liability and comprehensive/collision, hazard and theft insurance on
property and contents, and fidelity bonds.

9. Other Information: Independent Audit — State statutes require an annual audit by independent
certified public accountants or registered municipal accountants. The accounting firm of Ferraioli,
Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A., was selected by the Board. [n addition to meeting the
requirements set forth in state statutes, the audit also was designed to meet the requirements of
the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, as amended and the related OMB Circular A-133 and
State Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 OMB. The auditor’s report on the general-purpose financial
statements and combining the individual fund statement and schedules is included in the financial
section of this report. The auditor’s reports related specifically to the single audit are included in
the single audit section of this report.

10. Acknowledgments: We would like to express our appreciation to the members of the Tinton Falls
School District Board of Education for their concern in providing fiscal accountability to the
citizens and taxpayers of the School District and thereby contributing their full support to the
development and maintenance of our financial operation. The preparation of this report could not
have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated services of our financial and
accounting staff.

Respectfully submitted,

Mr. John Russo Mrs. Tamar R. Sydney-Gens
Superintendent of Schools Business Administrator/Board Secretary

"TOGETHER TOWARD TOMORROW”
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Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr., MBA, CPA, RMA Certified Public Accountants Newton Office
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Borough of Tinton Falls School District
County of Monmouth, New Jersey
Tinton Falls, New Jersey

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, and each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Board of Education of
the Borough of Tinton Falls School District, in the County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Borough of Tinton
Falls School District Board of Education’s management. Our responsibility is to express opinions on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of
Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for
designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Tinton Falls Board of Education’s internal control over
financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
pringiples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, and each major fund,
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Borough of Tinton Falls Board of Education, in the
County of Monmouth, State of New Jersey, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective changes in financiai
position and cash flows, where applicable, for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

FWCC
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Honorable President and
Members of the Board of Education
Page 2.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 28, 2011
on our consideration of the Borough of Tinton Falls Board of Education’s internal control over financial
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. This report is an integral part of our audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing f the
results of our audit. -

The Management Discussion and Analysis and Budgetary Comparison Information are not a required part
of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information required by the accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain limited procedures, which
consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement and presentation
of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Borough of Tinton Falls Board of Education’s basic financial statements. The accompanying
introductory section and other supplementary information such as the combining and individual fund
financial statements, long-term debt schedules and statistical tables are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining and individual fund
financial statements and long-term debt schedules have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables
have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

The accompanying schedules of federal awards and state financial assistance are presented for purposes of
additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Staies,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations; and New Jersey OMB’s Circular 04-04, Single Audit
Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Paul J. ga, C.P.A.

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. CS00076600

Lol LBl il y e ST

FERRAIOLI WIELKOTZ CERULLO & CUVA,P.A.
Certified Public Accountants
October 28, 2011 F CC
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED

The discussion and analysis of the Tinton Falls Board of Education’s financial performance provides
an overall review of the School District’s financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.
The intent of this discussion and analysis is to look at the District’s financial performance as a whole
and should not be interpreted as a replacement for the audit which consists of the financial
statements and other supplemental information that presents all the District’s revenues and
expenditures by program for the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund and Enterprise Fund.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

» Intotal, net assets increased $3,006,541. Net assets of governmental activities increased by
$2,897,692 and net assets of business-type activity increased by $108,849.

»  General revenues accounted for $24,237,782 in revenue or 87.4 percent of all governmental
revenues. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and sales, grants and
contributions accounted for $3,502,154 or 12.6 percent of total revenues of $27,739,936.

« The School District had $24,031,181 in expenses related to governmental activities; only
$2,691,591 of these expenses were offset by program specific charges for services, grants or
contributions. General revenues (primarily grants, entitlements and property taxes) of
$24,237,782 were adequate to provide for these programs.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements and notes to those statements. The
statements are organized so the reader can understand the District as a whole (district-wide
statements), and then proceed to provide an increasingly detailed look at specified financial
activities.

District-Wide Financial Statements

The statement of net assets and statement of activities reports information about the District as a
whole and about its activities in a manner that helps answer the question, “Is the District better or
worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” These statements include all assets and liabilities of
the District using the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the accounting used by private sector
corporations. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into consideration regardless
of when cash 1s received or paid.

Both of the district-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Tinton Falls Board of
Education that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges (business-type activities).

-10 -



BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT, (continued)

In the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities, the District is divided into two distinct
kinds of activities:

* Governmental Activities — All of the school district’s programs and services are reported
here including instruction, support services, operation and maintenance of plant facilities,
pupil transportation and extracurricular activities.

+ Business-type Activities — These services are provided on a charge for goods and services
basis to recover all the expenses of the goods or services provided. The Food Service,
Enterprise Fund, Time + program and the Kindergarten Enrichment Program are reported as
business activities.

The two statements report the District’s net assets and changes in them. The change in net assets can
be utilized by a reader to assist in determining whether the District’s financial health 1s improving
or deteriorating. However, the reader should also consider non-financial factors such as property tax
base, current New Jersey laws restricting revenue growth, student enrollment growth, facility
conditions, required educational programs and other factors in determining the District’s overall
financial health.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Tinton Falls Board of Education, like other
state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the district’s funds can be divided into three categories:
Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds and Fiduciary Funds.

Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the district-wide financial statements. However, unlike the district-wide financial
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal
year. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting,
which measures cash and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the district-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities inthe district-wide financial statements. By doing
so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term financing
decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities (reported in the Statement of
Net Assets and the Statement of Activities).
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT, (continued)

The Tinton Falls Board of Education maintains four individual governmental funds. Information
is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental statement
of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the general, special revenue, capital
projects and debt service funds, which are considered to be major funds.

The Tinton Falls Board of Education adopts annual appropriated budgets for its governmental funds.
A budgetary comparison statement has been provided for the general fund, special revenue fund and
debt service to demonstrate compliance with their budgets.

Proprietary Funds

Proprietary funds use the accrual basis of accounting, the same as on the government-wide
statements, therefore the statements will essentially match the business-type activities portion of the
government-wide statements. The Tinton Falls Board of Education uses proprietary funds to account
for its food service program, Kindergarten Enrichment and the Time + program.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the District.
These activities are excluded from the District’s other financial statements because the assets cannot
be utilized by the District to finance its operations.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided
in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain -

required supplementary information concerning budgetary information for the District’s major
funds.

Our auditor has provided assurance in his independent auditor’s report, located immediately
preceding this Management’s Discussion and Analysis, that the Basic Financial Statements are fairly
stated. Varying degrees of assurance are being provided by the auditor regarding the Required
Supplemental Information and the Supplemental Information identified above. A user of this report
should read the independent auditor’s report carefully to ascertain the level of assurance being
provided for each of the other parts in the Financial Section.
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Statement of Net Assets provides the perspective of the District as a whole. Net assets may,
over time, serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position.

The District’s financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net
results of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets
and the depreciation of capital assets.

The School District’s net assets were $23,361,005 at June 30, 2011 and $20,354,464 at June 30,
2010. Restricted net assets are reported separately to show legal constraints that limit the School
District’s ability to use those net assets for day-to-day operations. Our analysis below focuses on
the net assets for 2011 compared to 2010 (Table 1) and change in net assets (Table 2) of the School
District.

Table 1
Net Assets
June 30,
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Assets
Current and Other Assets 21,586,084 11,915,329 940,184 625,206 22,526,268 12,540,535
Capital Assets 22,711,580 21,195,123 22,711,580 21,195,123
Total Assets 44.297.664 33.110.452 940,184 625,206 45.237.848 33,735,658
Liabilities
Current Liabilities 7.929,488 2,927,548 250,780 44,651 8,180,268 2,972,199
Noncurrent Liabilities 13,696,575 10.408,995 13,696,575 10.408.995
Total Liabilities 21,626,063 13,336,343 250,780 44,651 21.876.843 13,381,194
Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets- -

Net of Debt 8,045,100 9,983,688 8,045,100 9,983,688
Restricted 14,666,358 9,680,083 14,666,358 9,680,083
Unrestricted (39.857) 110.138 689.404 580,555 649.547 690,693
Total Net Assets 22,671,601 19.773.909 689,404 580,555 23.361,005 20,354,464

This year, the district was able to report a balance of $649,547 in its unrestricted net assets, which is a
decrease from the previous years’ balance of $690,693.
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

TINTON FALLS, NJ

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, (continued)

Table 2 below shows the changes in net assets for fiscal year 2011 compared to 2010.

Revenues
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services and
Sales
Operating Grants and
Contributions
Capital Grants and
Contributions
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes
Federal and State Aid
Not Restricted
Tuition Received
Miscellaneous Income
Investment Earnings
Gain on Disposal of Assets
Capital Asset Adjustment

Total Revenues and Transfers

Table 2
Changes in Net Assets
Year Ended June 340,
Governmental Activities Business-Tvpe Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
686,535 694,402 686,535 694,402
1,780,851 1,459,399 124,028 114,424 1,904,879 1,573,823
910,740 910,740
19,922,843 19,207,555 19,922,843 19,207,555
4,201,864 4,134,280 4,201,864 4,134,280
34,161 136,707 34,161 136,707
51,486 65,459 51,486 65,459
26,928 39,121 26,928 39,121
15,303 15,303
26,928.873 25.057.824 810,563 808,826 27,739,436 25.866.650
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, (continued

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
Functions/Program '
Instruction:

Regular 7,155,788 7,438,363 7,155,788 7.438,363
Special Education 1,869,541 2,059,213 1,869,541 2,059.213
Other Special Instruction 279,564 317.664 279,564 317,664
Other Instruction 112,936 124,842 , 112,936 124,842

Support Services:

Tuition 521,532 544,104 521,532 544,104
Student & Instruction

Related Services 2,762,055 2,905,887 2,762,055 2,905,887
School Administrative

Services 923,854 908,499 ‘ 923,854 908,499
General Adminisirative

Services 634,441 582,216 634,441 582,216
Central Services and

Admin.Technology 384,650 389,127 384,650 389,127
Plant Operations and

Maintenance 1,745,891 1,843,435 1,745,891 1,843,435
Pupil Transportation 1,712,608 1,853,934 1,712,608 1,853,934
Unallocated Benefits 4,517,516 4,465,189 4,517,516 4,465,189
Charter Schools 16,936 16,936
Capital Outlay - Non-

Depreciable 10,169 45,688 10,169 45,688
Unallocated Depreciation 813,818 779,482 813,818 779,482
Interest on Long Term Debt 569,882 368,946 569,882 568,946
Food Service 444,806 457,353 444,806 457,353
Time+ 167,828 151,532 167,828 151,532
Kindergarten Enrichment 89.080 94.042 89.080 94,042

Total Expenses and Transfers 24,031,181 24,826,589 701,714 702,927 24,732,895 25,529,516

Increase or (Decrease) in

Net Assets 2,897,692 231,235 108.849 105,899 2,095,801 321,831
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, (continued)

Governmental and Business- Activities

As reported in the Statement of Activities the cost of all of our governmental and business-type
activities this year was $24,732,895. However, the amount that our taxpayers ultimately financed
for these activities through School District taxes was only $19,922,843 because some of the cost was -
paid by those who benefitted from the programs $686,535, by other governments and organizations
who subsidized certain programs with grants and contributions $7,017,483, investment earnings
$26,928 and by miscellaneous sources $85,647.

Revenues for the District’s business-type activities (food service, time + and kindergarten
enrichment programs) were comprised of charges for services and federal and state subsidy
reimbursements. Significant financial results include the following:

v Revenues exceeded expenses by $108,849.

v Charges for services provided totaled $686,535. This represents amounts paid by consumers
for charges for services.

v' Tederal and state reimbursement for meals served, including payments for free and reduced
priced lunches, and donated commodities was $124,028.

The following schedules present a summary of governmental fund revenues and expenditures for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, and the amount and percentage of increases/(decreases) relative to
the prior year.

Increase/ Percent of

Percent of (Decrease) Increase/

Revenue Amount Total from 2010 (Decrease)
Local Sources $20,118,737 74.71% $654,737 34.71%
State Sources 5,966,111 22.16% 1,225,789 64.98%
Federal Sources 844.025 3.13% 5,826 0.31%
Total $26.928.873 100.00% $1.886.352 100.00%
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 3¢, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAIL, ANALYSIS, (continued)

The decrease in local revenue sources can be attributed to the decrease in interest on investments and
miscellaneous revenues. The decrease in state revenue is a result of a decrease in state aid payments
to the District.

Increase/ Percent of
Percent of (Decrease) Increase/
Expenditures Amount Total from 2010 (Decrease)
Current Expense:
Instruction $9,341,877 34.94% ($493,049) (167.80)%
Undistributed 13,161,261 49.22% (421,254) (143.37)%
Capital Qutlay 2,443,102 9.14% 1,209,102 411.50%
Debt Service 1,791,165 6.70% (970) (0.33)%
Total $26,737.405 100.00% $293.829 100.00%

Changes in expenditures were the result of varying factors. Current expense undistributed decreased
due to significant decrease in State On-Behalf payment for pension benefits cost increases combined
with increased student special education costs.

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BUDGETING AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

The School District’s budgets are prepared according to New Jersey law, and are based on
accounting for certain transactions on a basis of cash receipts, disbursements and encumbrances.

The most significant budgeted funds are the general fund, special revenue fund, and debt service
fund.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the School District amended the budgets of these major
governmental funds several times. Revisions in the budget were made to recognize revenues that
were not anticipated and to prevent over-expenditures in specific line item accounts. Several of
these revisions bear notation:

» TPAF, which is the state’s contribution to the pension fund and medical retirement, is neither
a budgeted revenue item nor a budgeted expenditure item to the district but is required to
be reflected in the financial statements.

+ The special revenue fund was increased by $44,890 for increases in federal, state and local
grant revenues.
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALILS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BUDGETING AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS,
(continued)

General Fund

The general fund actual revenue was $23,402,647. That amount is $2,029,447 above the final
amended budget of $21,373,200. The variance between the actual revenues and final budget was
the result of non-budgeted on-behalf payments of $1,457,267 for TPAF social security
reimbursements and on-behalf pension and medical retirement payments, an excess in other state and
federal aids of $552,519, and a $19,661 excess in local anticipated revenues.

The actual expenditures of the general fund were $23,483,806, including transfers. This is
$4,757,577 below the final amended budget of $28,241,383. The variance between the actual
expenditures and final budget was due to an unfavorable variance in non-budget on-behalf TPAF
social security and pension payments of $1,457,267, and $3,300,310 of unexpended budgeted funds.

The general fund had total revenues of $23,402,647 and total expenditures of $23,483,806 with an
ending fund balance of $9,354,155.

Special Revenue Fund

The special revenue fund actual revenue was $896,282. That amount is above the original budget
estimate of $361,282 and equal to the final amended budget. The $535,000 variance between the
original and final budget was due to additional federal and state grant monies awarded to the District
after the original budget was approved.

The actual expenditures of the special revenue fund were $896,282, which is above the original
budget of $361,282. The $535,000 variance between the original budget was due to additional
expenditures related to the additional grants awarded to the District after the original budget was
approved.
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT

TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

At the end of fiscal year 2011, the School District had $36,304,886 invested in land, buildings and
building improvements, machinery and equipment, and construction in progress. Of this amount,
$13.593,306 in depreciation has been taken over the years. We currently have a net book value of
$22,711,580. Total depreciable additions for the year were $72,711, the majority of which was for
various technology and office equipment and building improvements and depreciable deletions of
$100,670, which was various technology items. Table 3 shows fiscal year 2011 balances compared

to 2010,
Table 3
Capital Assets at June 30,
(Net of Depreciation)
Governmental Activities Business Activities Total
2011 010 2011 010 011 2010
Land 239,620 239,620 0 0 239,620 239,620
Builidings and Site
Improvements 19,689,372 20,426,759 0 0 19,689,372 20,426,759
Furniture, Equipment
and Vehicles 422,366 528,744 0 0 422,366 528,744
Construction in Progress 2.360,222 2.360.222
22.711,580 21,195,123 0 0 22.711.580 21,195,123
Debt Administration

At June 30, 2011, the district had $15,234,530 of outstanding debt. Of this amount, $568,050 is for compensated
absences; $85,480 is for various capital leases; and $14,581,000 of serial bonds issued for the financing of various

school construction projects.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'’S BUDGETS

Due to the current state of the economy in New Jersey and across the country, our economic outlook is not as bright
as we would hope. This economic reality will have an impact on our ability to advance our program and educational
goals. These factors will be considered in preparing the Tinton Falls Board of Education’s budget for the 2011-2012

fiscal year.
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
TINTON FALLS, NJ

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
UNAUDITED (CONTINUED)

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGETS, (continued)
The following factors were considered in preparing the 2011-2012 fiscal year budget:

Estimated student enroliment

Sources of revenue

Cost of negotiated salaries and benefits
Cost of fixed charges

Mandated programs

Requirements for health and safety issues

L4 L] - L] - -

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Tinton Falls Board of Education’s finances
for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional information should be addressed to:

Tamar Sydney-Gens,

Schoo! Business Administrator
Tinton Falls School District
658 Tinton Avenue

Tinton Falls, New Jersey 07724
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables, net
Interfund Accounts Receivable
Inventory
Restricted assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets, net :
Total Assets

LIABILYTIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Prepaid Taxes
Interfund Accounts Payable
Payable to federal and state government
Deferred revenue
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year

Due beyond one year

Total liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt

Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Other Purposes
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total net assets

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Tinton Falls School District
Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2011

Exhibit A-1

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

7,468,163 925,837 8,394,000
5,189,274 4,984 5,194,258
9,363 9,363

8,928,647
22,711,580 22,711,580
44,297,664 940,184 36,309,201
2,972,024 213,381 3,185,405
12,288 12,288
9,760 9,760
3,397,461 37,399 3,434,860
1,537,955 1,537,955
13,696,575 13,696,575
21,626,063 250,780 21,876,843
8,045,100 8,045,100
3,959 3,959
6,864,914 6,864,914
7.797,485 7,797,485
(39,857) 689,404 649,547
22,671,601 689,404 23,361,005
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FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables from Other Governments
Tuitions Receivable
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Prepaid Taxes
Payable to Federal and State Governments
Interfund Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Total Liabilities

Fund Belances:

Restricted for:
Excess Surmplus - current year
Exeess Surplus - prior year -designated

for subsequent vear's expenditures

Emergency Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
Capital Reserve
Debt Service
Capital Projects

Committed to;
Other purposes

Assignad to:
Debt Service
Designated by the BOE for

subsequent vear's expenditures

Capital Projects

Unassigned:
General Fund
Special Revenue Fund

Total Fund Balances
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Tintan Falls School Bristrict

Extibit B-1

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

-23 -

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
Jume 30, 2011
Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projeets Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund * Fuond Funds
7,719,128 (255,693} 4,728 7,468,163
466,879 529,176 4,193,219 5,189,274
1.725729 7,202,918 8,928,647
9,911,736 273,483 11,396,137 4,728 2],586,084
779,721 105,485 1,911,537 2,796,743
11,519 769 12,288
9,760 9,760
51,163 158,238 3,188,060 3,397,461
842,403 273,483 5,099,597 768 6,216,252
2,658,008 2,658,008
1,218,276 1,218,276
250,000 250,000
907,355 907,355
568,374 568,374
3,959 3,959
6,296,540 6,296,540
2,277,928 2,277,928
485,918 485,918
703,474 703,474
4,069,333 6,296,540 3,959 15,369,832
5911736 273,483 11,396,137 4,728
Amounts reported for govermmental activities in the statement of
net assets {A-1} are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. The cost
of the assets is $33,972,623 and the accumuiated depreciation
is $12.777,500. 22,711,580
Interest on Long-term debt accrued (175,281)
Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the
current period and therefore are not reported as
iabilities in the finds (see Note 3) (15,234,530)
Net assets of governmental activities 22,671,601




REVENUES
Local Sources:
Local Tax Levy
Tuition Fees
Interest Barned on Capital Reserve Funds
Interest Barned on Emergency Reserve Funds
Interest Barned on Investments
Miscellaneous
Total - Local Sources
State Sources
Federal Scurces
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current;
Regular Instruction
Special Education Instruction
Other Special Instruction
Other Instruction
Support Services and Undistributed Costs:
Tuition
Student & Instruction Related Services
General Administrative Services
School Administrative Services

Central Services and Administrative Technology

Plant Operations and Maintenance
Pupil Transportation
Empioyee Benefils
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Other Charges
Capital Qutlay

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SQOURCES (USES)
Capital Leases (non-budgeted)

Bond Proceeds

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources and uses

SPECIAL ITEM
Proceeds from sale of land

Net Change in Fund Balances
Fund Balance—July 1
Fund Balance—June 30

The accompanying Nofes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Tinton Falls School District

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit B-2

Special Capital Debt Total
General Revenue Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

18,387,437 1,535,406 19,922 843

34,161 34161

975 975

23,040 . 2,913 25,953
51,486 83,319 134,805
18,497,099 83,319 2,913 1,535,406 20,118,737

4,912,381 92,866 910,740 50,124 5,966,111
123,928 720,097 844 025
23,533,408 856,282 913,653 1,585,530 26,928,873
6,454,529 625,307 7,079,830
1,869,541 1,869,541
279,564 279,564
112,936 112,936
521,532 521,532
2,524,624 260,806 2,785,430
634,441 634,441
923,854 923,854
384,650 384,650
1,738,765 1,738,765
1,712,608 1,712,608
4,459,981 4,459,981
1,270,000 1,270,000

521,165 521,165

131,080 10,169 2,301,853 2,443,102

© 21,748,105 896,282 2,301,853 1,791,165 26,737405
1,785,303 - {3,388,200) {205,635) 191,468
4,768,000 4,768,000

1,718,765 207,913 1,926,678
(1,735,700) (207,913) (1,943,614)
(1,735,701) - 6,278 852 207,913 4,751,064
49.602 - 4,890,652 2,278 4942 532
8,019,731 1,405,888 1,681 10,427,300
5.(69,333 - 6,296,540 3,959 15,365,832
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Tinton Falls School District
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Bakances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Total net change in fund balances - governmeatal funds (from B-2)

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (A-2} are diffcrent because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the statement of
activities, the cost of those assets is allocaled over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the period.
Depreciation expense
Depreciable Capital outlays
Gain on Disposal of Capital Assets

Repayment of long-term debt is reported as an expenditure in the governmental finds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets and is not reported in the statement of activities.
Tn the current year | these amounts consist oft

Principal Payments
Capital L ease Principal

Proceeds from debit issues are a [inancing source in the governmental funds. They are not revenue in
the statement of activities; {ssuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net assets.

In the statement of activities, certain operating expenses, e.g., compensated absences {vacations} are
measured by the amounts eamned during the year. In the governmental funds, however, expenditures
for these items are reported in the amount of financial resources used (paid). When the eamed amount
exceeds the paid amount, the difference is reduction in the reconciliation (-); when the paid amount
exceeds the carned amount the difference is an addition to the reconciliation (+).

Some items reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources
and therefore are not reported as expenditores in governmental funds. These activities consist of:
Increase in compensated absences payable

In the statement of activities, interest on long-term debt is accrued, regardless
of when due. In the governmental funds, interest 1s reported when due.
The change in accrued interest is an addition in the recenciliation.

Accrued interest - current year
Accrued interest - prior year

Change in net assets of governmental activities

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

_05.

Exhibit B-3

4,942,532

(916.476)
2,432,933

1,270,000
42,955

(4,763,000}

(57,535)

(175.281)
126,564

2,897,652




ASSETS

Current Assefs:
" Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable:
State
Federal
Inventory
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Equipment
Less Accumiulated Depreciation
Total Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation)
Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Current Eiabilities:
Accounts Payable
Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities
Noncutrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences
Total Nencurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets Net of
Related Debt

Unrestricted

Total Net Assets

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

Tinton Falls School District
Combining Statement of Net Assets

Enterprise Funds
June 3¢, 2011

Exhibit B-4

Ki.ndergarten
Food Service Time + Enrichment .
Program Program Program Totals
322,347 278,303 325,187 925,837
224 224
4,760 4,760
9,363 9,363
336,694 278,303 325,187 940,184
20,878 20,878
(20,878} (20,878)
(0) - - 0
336,694 278,303 325,187 940,184
213,281 160 213,381
6,824 30,575 37,359
220,105 100 30,575 250,780
220,105 100 30,575 250,780
(0) ()
116,589 278,203 294612 689,404
116,589 278,203 294612 689,404
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Tinton Falls Schoel District
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit B-5

Kindergarten
Food Service Fime + Enrichment
Prograsm . Program Program Totals
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs 193,139 193,139
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs 149.607 149,607
Miscellaneous . 3,262 182,109 158,418 343,789
Total Operating Revenues 346,008 182,109 158,418 686,335
Operating Expenses:
Cost of Sales ) 206,132 206,132
Cost of Labor 172,689 139,638 73,298 385,645
Supplies and Materiais : 36,762 1,654 749 39,165
Employee Benefits 18,983 24,836 13,048 56,867
Miscellaneous Expense 10,240 1,680 1,985 13,905
Tatal Operating Expenses 444 806 167,828 89,080 701,714
Operating Income (Loss) (98,798) 14,281 69,338 (15,179)
Nonoeperating Revenues (Expenses):
State Sources:
State School Lunch Program 4,643 4,643
Federal Sources:
National School Lunch Program 101,942 101,942
Food Distribution Program 17,443 17,443
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 124,028 - - 124,028
Income (Loss) Before Contributions & Transfers . 25,230 14,281 69,338 108,549
Transfers In (Out) o=
Change in Net Assets ' 25,230 14,281 69,338 108,849
Total Net Assets - Beginning 91,359 263,022 225,274 580,555
Total Net Assets—Ending 116,589 278,203 294,612 689,404

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Exhibit B-&

Tinton Falls School District
Combining Statement of Cash Flows
Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Kindergarten
Food Service TFime + Enrichment
Program Program Program Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers 352,832 182,109 158,418 693,359
Payments to employees (139,658) (73,298) (212,936)
Payments for Miscellanecus Expenses (65,985) (29,6063 (18.477) (114,068)
Payments to Food Service Management Company : (178,712) (178,712)
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities 108,135 12 845 66,643 187,623
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources 4,915 ' 4,915
Federal Sources 143,949 143,949
Local Sources -
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities 148.864 - - 148,864
Net Increass (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 256,999 12,845 66,643 336,487
Balances—Beginning of Year 63,348 265,458 258,544 589,350
Balances—End of Year 322,347 278,303 325,187 925,837

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) ' (98,798) 14281 69,338 {15,179)
Adjusiments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
{Used for) operating activities:

Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue 6,824 6,824
(Increase) Dectease Inventory (3,327 (3,327)

Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable 203,436 (1,436) (2,695) 199,305

Total Adjustments 206,933 (1,436) {2,695) 202,802

Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activitiss 108,135 12,845 66,643 187,623

The accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Tinton Falls School Distriet
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2011

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Payable to student groups
Payroli deductions and withholdings
Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Agency
Faund

75,396

75,396

70,633
4,763

75,396

The accompanying Notes to Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT AND REPORTING ENTITY:

The Board of Education of the Borough of Tinton Falls (“Board”™) School District (the “District”™) is an
instrumentality of the State of New Jersey, established to function as an educational institution. The
Borough of Tinton Falls School District is a Type I district located in the County of Monmouth, State of
New Jersey. Asa Type ILdistrict, the School District functions independently through a Board of Education.

The board is comprised of nine members elected to three-year terms. The purpose of the District is to
educate students in grades K-8. A superintendent is appointed by the Board and is responsible for the
administrative control of the District. Under existing statutes, the Board’s duties and powers include, but
are not limited to, the development and adoption of a school program; the establishment, organization and
operation of schools; and the acquisition, maintenance and disposition of school property.

'The Board also has broad financial responsibilities, including the approval of the annual budget and the
establishment of a system of accounting and budgetary controls.

The primary criterion for including activities within the District's reporting entity, as set forth in Section
2100 of'the GASB Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards, is whether:

. the organization is legally separate (can sue or be sued in their own name)

«  the Board holds the corporate powers of the organization

. the Board appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board

. the Board is able to impose its will on the organization

»  the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the Board
. there is a fiscal dependency by the organization on the Board '

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Board has no component units. Furthermore, the Board is not
-includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such criteria.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The financial statements of the Board have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally

“accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The Board also applies Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) statements and interpretations issued on or before November 30, 1989, to its governmental and
business-type activities provided they do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements. The more
significant of the board’s accounting policies are described below.

A. Basis of Presentation:

The Board’s basic financial statements consist of District-wide statements, including a statement of net
assets and a statement of activities, and fund financial statements which provide a more detailed level of
financial information.
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continuned)

District-wide Financial Statements:

‘The statement of net assets and the statement of activities display information about the Board as a whole.
These statements include the financial activities of the overall District, except for the fiduciary funds. The
statements distinguish between those activities of the Board that are governmental and those that are
considered business-type activities.

The statement of net assets presents the financial condition of the governmental and business-type activities
of the Board at year-end. The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and
program revenues for each program or function of the governmental activities and for the business-type
activities of the Board. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a service, program
or function and, therefore, clearly identifiable to a particular function. Program revenues include charges
paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the program, grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. Revenues which are
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented as general revenues of the Board, with
certain Immited exceptions. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies the extent
to which each business segment or governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general
revenues of the Board.

Fund Financial Statements:

During the fiscal year, the School District segregates transactions related to certain School District functions
or activities in separate funds in order to aid financial management and to demonstrate legal compliance.
The fund financial statements provide information about the District’s funds, including its fiduciary funds.
Separate statements for each fund category - government, proprietary, and fiduciary - are presented. The
New Jersey Department of Education (NJDOE) has elected to require New Jersey districts to treat each
governmental fund as amajor fund in accordance with the option noted in GASB No. 34, paragraph 76. The
NJIDOE believes that the presentation of all funds as major is important for public interest and to promote
consistency among district financial reporting models. The various funds of the Board are grouped into the
categories governmental, proprietary and fiduciary.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental funds are those through which most governmental functions of the Board are financed.

Governmental fund reporting focuses on the sources, uses and balances of current financial resources.

Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds according to the purposes for which
they may or must be used. Current liabilities are assigned to the fund from which they will be paid.

The difference between governmental fund assets and liabilities is reported as fund balance. The
following are the Board’s governmental funds:
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Borough of Tinton Falls Scheol District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS, (continued)

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Board. It is used to account for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for 1n another fund. Included are certain
expenditures for vehicles and movable instructional or noninstructional equipment which are classified
in the Capital Outlay subfund.

As required by the New Jersey State Department of Education, the Board includes budgeted Capital
Outlay in this fund. Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as they
pertain to governmental entities state that General Fund resources may be used to directly finance
capital outlays for long-lived improvements as long as the resources in such cases are derived
exclusively from unrestricted revenues.

Resources for budgeted capital outlay purposes are normally derived from State of New Jersey Aid,
District taxes and appropriated fund balance. Expenditures are those that result in the acquisition of
or additions to fixed assets for land, existing buildings, improvements of grounds, construction of
buildings, additions to or remodeling of buildings and the purchase of built-in equipment. These
resources can be transferred from and to Current Expense by board resolution.

Special Revenue Fund - The Special Revenue Fund 1s used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue from State and Federal Government, (other than major capital projects, Debt Service or the
Enterprise Funds) and local appropriations that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

Capital Projects Fund - The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for all financial resources to be
used for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by
Proprietary Funds). The financial resources are derived from sale of bonds, lease purchases and other
revenues.

Debt Service Fund - The debt service fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for
and the payment of principal and interest on bonds issued to finance major property acquisition,
construction and improvement programs.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

The focus of Proprietary Fund measurement is upon determination of net income, changes in net assets,
financial position and cash flows. The accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. Proprietary funds are
classified as enterprise or internal service; the Board has no internal service funds. The following is
a description of the Proprietary Funds of the Board:
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30,2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

PROPRIETARY FUNDS, (continued)

Enterprise Funds - The Enterprise Funds are utilized to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises -- where the intent of the Board 1s that the
costs (i.e. expenses including depreciation and indirect costs) of providing goods or services to the
students on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or, where the
Board has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net
income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management control, accountability or

other purposes.

The Board's Enterprise Fund is comprised of the Food Service Fund.

FIDUCITARY FUNDS

Fiduciary Fund - Fiduciary Fund reporting focuses on net assets and changes in net assets.

Trust and Agency Funds - The Trust and Agency Funds are used to account for assets held by the
Board in a trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments
and/or other funds. '

Agency Funds - Agency funds are used to account for the assets that the Board holds on behalf of
others as their agent. Agency funds are custodial in nature and do not involve measurement of results

of operations. Agency funds include payroll and student activities funds.

B. Measurement Focus:

District-wide Financial Statements

The District-wide statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of activities) are prepared
using the economic resources measurements focus and the accrual basis of accounting. All assets and
liabilities associated with the operation of the Board are included on the statement of net assets, except for
fiduciary funds.

Fund Financial Statements

All governmental funds are accounted for using a flow of current financial resources measurement focus.
With this measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance
sheet. The statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances reports on the sources (i.e.,
revenues and other financing sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) of current
financial resources. This approach differs from the manner in which the governmental activities of the
District-wide financial statements are prepared. Governmental fund financial statements therefore include
a reconciliation with brief explanations to better identify the relationship between the government-wide
statements and the statements for governmental funds.
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

B. Measurement Focus: (continued)

Fund Financial Statements, (continuwed)

Like the District-wide statements, all proprietary fund types are accounted for on a flow of economic
resources measurement focus. All assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these funds are
mcluded on the statement of net assets. The statement of changes in fund net assets presents increases (i.e.,
revenues) and decreases (i.e., expenses) in net total assets. The statement of cash flows provides information
about how the Board finances and meets the cash flow needs of its proprietary activities.

C. Basis of Accounting:

Basis of accounting determines when transactions are recorded in the financial records and reported on the
financial statements. The District-wide financial statements and the financial statements of the proprietary
and fiduciary funds are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Governmental funds use the
modified accrual basis of accounting. Differences in the accrual and the modified accrual basis of
accounting arise in the recognition of revenue, the recording of deferred revenue, and in the presentation of
expenses versus expenditures.

Revenues - Exchange and Non-exchange Transactions

Revenue resulting from exchange transactions, in which each party gives and receives essentially equal
value, 1s recorded on the accrual basis when the exchange takes place. On amodified acerual basis, revenue
isrecorded in the fiscal year in which the resources are measurable and become available. Available means
that the resources will be collected within the current fiscal year or are expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current fiscal year.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the Board receives value without directly giving equal value in return,
include property taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes
is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements and
donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. Eligibility
requirements include timing requirements, which specity the year when the resources are required to be used
or the year when use is first permitted, matching requirements, in which the Board must provide local
resources to be used for a specified purpose, and expenditure requirements, in which the resources are
provided to the Board on a reimbursement basis. On a modified accrual basis, revenue from nonexchange
transactions must also be available before it can be recognized. Under GAAP, in accordance with GASB
No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions, the last state aid payment is not
considered revenue to the school district if the state has not recorded the corresponding expenditure, even
though state law dictates recording the revenue.

Under the modified accrual basis, the following revenue sources are considered to be both measurable and
available at year-end: ad valorem property taxes, tuition, unrestricted grants and interest.
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District
Notes to the Basie Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

C. Basis of Accounting: (continued)

Expenses/Expenditures

On the accrual basts of accounting, expenses are recognized at the time they are incurred. The fair value of
donated commodities used during the year is reported in the operating statement as an expense with a like
amount reported as donated commodities revenue.

The measurement of focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net financial resources
(expenditures) rather than expenses. Expenditures are generally recognized in the accounting period in
which the related fund liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and
amortization, are not recognized in the governmental funds.

1. Budgeis/Budgetary Control:

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted in the spring of the preceding year for the general, special revenue
funds and debt service funds. The budgets are submitted to the county superintendents office for approval.

Budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting, except for the special revenue fund as
described later. The legal level of budgetary control is established at line item accounts within each fund.

Line item accounts are defined as the lowest (most specific) level of detail as established pursuant to the
minimum chart of accounts referenced in N.J.A.C. 6A:23-2(G)1. Transfers of appropriations may be made
by School Board resolution at any time during the fiscal year. The Board of Education did not make any
material supplemental budgetary appropriations during the fiscal vear.

Appropriations, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and unexpended grant
appropriations, lapse at the end of each fiscal year. The capital projects fund presents the remaining project
appropriations compared to current year expenditures.

Formal budgetary integration into the accounting system is employed as a management control device during
the year. For governmental funds there are no substantial differences between the budgetary basis of
accounting and accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America with the exception
of the legally mandated revenue recognition of the last state aid payment for budgetary purposes only and
special revenue fund as noted below. Encumbrance accounting is also employed as an extension of formal
budgetary integration in the governmental fund types. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at fiscal year end,

The accounting records of the special revenue fund are maintained on the grant accounting budgetary basis.
The grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that the grant accounting budgetary basis
recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues, whereas the GAAP basis
does not. Sufficient supplemental records are maintained to allow for the presentation of GAAP basis
financial reports.
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statemenis
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

E. Encumbrances:

Under encumbrance accounting purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion of the applicable appropriation. Open encumbrances in
governmental funds, other than the special revenue fund, are reported as reservations of fund balances at
fiscal year end as they do not constitute expenditures or liabilities but rather commitments related to
unperformed contracts for goods and services.

Open encumbrances in the special revenue fund, for which the Board has received advances, are reflected
in the balance sheet as deferred revenues at fiscal year end.

The encumbered appropriation authority carries over into the next fiscal year. An entry will be made at the
beginning of the next fiscal year to increase the appropriation reflected in the certified budget by the

outstanding encumbrance amount as of the current fiscal year end.

F. Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments:

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, cash in banks and all highly liquid investments
with a maturity of three months or less at the time of purchase and are stated at cost plus accrued interest.
U.S. Treasury and agency obligations and certificates of deposit with maturities of one year or less when
purchased are stated at cost. All other investments are stated at fair value. '

New Jersey school districts are limited as to the types of investments and types of financial institutions they
may invest in. New Jersey statute 18A:20-37 provides a list of permissible investments that may be
purchased by New Jersey school districts.

Additionally, the Board has adopted a cash management plan that requires it to deposit public funds in public
depositories protected from loss under the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection Act
{("GUDPA"). GUDPA was enacted in 1970 to protect Governmental Units from a loss of funds on deposit
with a failed banking institution in New Jersey.

N.J.S.A.17:9-41 et. seq. establishes the requirements for the security of deposits of governmental units. The
statute requires that no governmental unit shall deposit public funds in a public depository unless such funds
are secured in accordance with the Act. Public depositories include Savings and Loan institutions, banks
(both state and national banks) and savings banks the deposits of which are federally insured. All public
depositories must pledge collateral, having a market value at least equal to five percent of the average daily
balance of collected public funds, to secure the deposits of Governmental Units. If a public depository fails,
the collateral it has pledged, plus the collateral of all other public depositories, is available to pay the full
amount of their deposits to the Governmental Units.
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

-G. Tuition Revenues/Receivable:

Tuition charges were established by the Board of Education based on estimated costs. The charges are
subject to adjustment when the final costs have been determined.

H. Inventories:

On District-wide financial statements, inventories are presented at cost, which approximates market on a
first-in, first-out basis and are expensed when used.

On fund financial statements inventories are valued at cést, which approximates market, using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories of proprietary funds consist of food and goods held for resale,

as well as supplies, and are expensed when used.

1. Prepaid Items:

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond June 30, 2011, are recorded as
prepaid items using the consumption method. A current asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the time
of purchase and an expenditure/expense is reported in the year in which services are consumed.

J. Short-Term Interfund Receivables/Payvables:

On fund financial statements, receivables and payables resulting from short-term interfund loans are
classified as “interfund receivables/payables.” These amounts are eliminated in the governmental and
business-type activities columns of the statement of net assets, except for the net residual amounts due
between governmental and business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances.

K. Capital Assets:

General capital assets are those assets not specifically related to activities reported in the enterprise fund.
These assets generally result from expenditures in the governmental funds. These assets are reported in the
governmental activities column of the district -wide statement of net assets but are not reported in the fund
financial statements. Capital assets utilized by the enterprise fund are reported both in the business-type
activity column of the District-wide statement of net assets and in the fund.

All capital assets acquired or constructed during the year are recorded at actual cost. Donated fixed assets
are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received. The capital assets acquired or
constructed prior to June 30, 2011 are valued at cost based on historical records or through estimation
procedures performed by an independent appraisal company. Donated capital assets are valued at their
estimated fair market value on the date received. The Board currently maintains a capitalization threshold
of $2,000.00. The Board does not possess any infrastructure. Improvements are capitalized; the costs of
normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value fo the asset or materially extend an asset’s life
are not.
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

K. Capital Assets: (continued)

All reported capital assets except land and construction in progress are depreciated. Improvements are
depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related capital assets. Depreciation is computed using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activity
Description Estimated Lives Estimated Lives
Sites and Improvements 20 years N/A
Buildings and Improvements 7-50 years N/A
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 5-20 years 5-20 years

L. Compensated Absences:

Compensated absences are those absences for which employees will be paid, such as accumulated vacation
and sick leave. A liability for compensated absences that are attributable to services already rendered, and
that are not contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Board and its employees, is
accrued as the employees earn the rights to the benefits. Compensated absences that relate to future services,
or that are contingent on a specific event that is outside the control of the Board and its employees, are
accounted for in the period in which such services are rendered or in which such events take place.

For the District-wide Statements, the current portion is the amount estimated to be used in the following
vear. In accordance with GAAP, for the governmental funds, in the Fund Financial Statements, all of the
compensated absences are considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represents a
reconciling item between the fund level and District-wide presentations.

M. Deferred Revenue:

Deferred revenue arises when assets are recognized before revenue recognition criteria have been satistied.

Deferred revenue in the special revenue fund represents cash that has been received but not yet earned. See
Note 2(E) regarding the special revenue fund.

N. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations:

All payables, accrued liabilities and long-term obligations are reported in the District-wide financial
statements.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

N. Accrued Liabilities and Long-term Obligations: (continued)

In general, governmental fund payables and accrued liabilities that, once incurred, are paid in a timely
manner and in full from current financial resources, are reported as obligations of the funds. However,
claims and judgements, compensated absences, special termination benefits and contractually required
pension contributions that will be paid from governmental funds are reported as a liability in the fund
financial statements only to the extent that they are due for payment in the current year, Bonds, long-term
obligations, and capital leases that will be paid from governmental funds are recognized as a liability in the
fund financial statements when due.

. Fund Balances:

Fund balance is divided into five classifications based primarily on the extent to which the Board is bound
to observe constraints imposed upon the resources in the governmental funds. The classifications are as
follows:

* Nonspendable fund balance includes amounts that are not in a spendable form (inventory,
for example) or are required to be maintained intact (the principal of an endowment fund,
for example).

« Restricted fund balance includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by external resource providers (for example, grant providers), constitutionally,
or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation that creates a new revenue source and
restricts its use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of
resource providers.

* Committed fund balance includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the Board’s highest level of decision-making authority.
Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the government taking the same formal
action that imposed the constraint originally.

» Assigned fund balance comprises amounts intended to be used by the Board for specific
purposes. Intent can be expressed by the governing body or by an official or body to which
the governing body delegates the authority. In governmental funds other than the general
fund, assigned fund balance represents the amount that is not restricted or committed. This
indicates that resources 1n other governmental funds are, at a minimum, intended to be used
for the purpose of that fund.

« Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the general fund and includes all
amounts not contained in the other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically
available for any purpose. If another governmental fund has a fund balance deficit, then it
will be reported as a negative amount in the unassigned classification in that fund. Positive
unassigned amounts will be reported only in the general fund.
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NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: (continued)

P. Net Assets:

Net assets represent the difference between assets and liabilities. Net assets invested in capital assets, net
of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. Net assets
are reported as restricted when there are lumitations imposed on their use either through the enabling
legislation adopted by the Board or through external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors or laws or
regulations of other governments.

The Board applies restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both
restricted and unrestricted net assets are available.

(). Operating Revenues and IExpenses:

Operating revenues are those revenues that are generated directly from the primary activity of the proprietary
funds. For the Board, these revenues are sales for food service. Operating expenses are necessary costs
incurred to provide the good or service that is the primary activity of the fund.

R. Extraordinary and Special Items:

Extraordinary items are transactions or events that are both unusual in nature and infrequent in occurrence.
Special items are transactions or events that are within the control of the Board and that are either unusual
in nature or infrequent in occurrence. Neither type of transaction occurred during the fiscal year.

S. Allocation of Indirect Expenses:

The District reports all direct expenses by function in the Statement of Activities. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly 1dentifiable with a function. Indirect expenses are allocated to functions but are reported
separately in the Statement of Activities. Depreciation expense, where practicable, is specifically identified
by function and is included in the indirect expense column of the Statement of Activities. Depreciation
expense that could not be attributed to a specific function is considered an indirect expense and is reported
separately on the Statement of Activities as unallocated depreciation. Interest on long-term debt is
considered an indirect expense and is reported separately on the Statement of Activities.

T. Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that effect certain
reports, amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

U. Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts:

No allowance for uncollectible accounts has been recorded as all amounts are considered collectible.
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NOTE 3. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be
returned to it. The District’s policy is based on New Jersey Statutes requiring cash be deposited only in New
Jersey based banking institutions that participate in New Jersey Governmental Depository Protection Act
(GUDPA) or in qualified investments established in New Jersey Statutes 18 A:20-37 that are treated as cash
equivalents. As of June 30, 2011, $-0- of the District’s bank balance of $17,708,260 was exposed to
custodial credit risk.

Investments

Investment Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of
managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. However, New Jersey
Statutes 18A:20-37 limits the length of time for most investments to 397 days.

Credit Risk

New Jersey Statutes 18A:20-37 limits school district investments to those specified in the Statutes. The type
of allowable investments are Bonds ofthe United States of America, bonds or other obligations of the school
districts or bonds or other obligations of the local unit or units within which the school district is located:
obligations of federal agencies not exceeding 397 days; government money market mutual funds; the State
of New Jersey Cash Management Plan; local government investment pools; or repurchase of fully
collateralized securities.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer.

New Jersey Cash Management Fund - All investments in the Fund are governed by the regulations of the
Investment Council, which prescribe specific standards designed to insure the quality of investments and

to minimize the risks related to investments. In all the years of the Division of Investment’s existence,
the Division has never suffered a default of principal or interest on any short-term security held by it due to
the bankruptcy of a securities issuer; nevertheless, the possibility always exists, and for this reason a reserve
1s being accumulated as additional protection for the “Other-than-State” participants. In addition to the
Council regulations, the Division sets further standards for specific investments and monitors the credit of
all eligible securities issuers on a regular basis. '

As of June 30, 2011, the District had $2,907,826 on deposit with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund.
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NOTE 4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2011, consisted of accounts receivable and intergovernmental. All receivables are
considered collectible in full. A summary of the principal items of intergovernmental receivables follows:

Governmental District Wide
Fund Financial Enterprise Financial
Statements Fund Statements

State Aid $4,660,008 $224 $4.660,322
Federal Aid 519,755 4,760 524,515
Other 9.421 0 9.421
Gross receivables 5,189,274 4,984 5,194,258
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles 0 0 0
Total Receivables, Net $5.189.274 $4.984 $5,194 258

NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 was as follows:

Balance Balance
6/30/10 Additions  Deductions 6/30/11
Governmental Activities -
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated
Land $239,620 $ $ $239,620
Construction in Progress _ 2,360,222 2.360.222
Total Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 239.620 2,360,222 2,599,842
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Sites and Improvements 1,577,610 1,577,610
Buildings and Improvements 30,247,613 28,655 30,276,268
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles 1,907,780 44,056 100,679 1,851,166
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated 33.733.003 72,711 100.670 33.705.,044
Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Sites and Improvements (1,238,270) (73,077) (1,311,347)
Buildings and Improvements (10,160,194) (692,965) (10,853,159)
Furniture, Equipment and Vehicles (1.379.036) (150.434) (100.670) (1.428.800)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (12.777.500) (916.476) (100,670} (13,593.30¢)
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net
20,955,503 (843.765) 20,111,738
Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net
$21.195,123 $1.516,457 $ $22 711,580
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NOTE 5. CAPITAL ASSETS, (continued)

Balance Balance
6/30/10 Additions Deductions 6/30/11
Business-Type Activity
Machinery and Equipment 20,878 20,878
Totals 20,878 20.878
Less Accumulated Depreciation 7
Machinery and Equipment (20.878). : (20.878)
Total Accumulated Depreciation (20.878) (20.878)
Business-Type Activity Capital Assets, Net 30 50 50 $0

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions as follows:

Instruction - Regular $75,952
Support Services - Administration 19,580
Plant Operations and Maintenance 7,126
Unallocated Depreciation 813.818
Total Deprecation Expense $916,476

NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 the following liabilities are reported in the general long-term debt account
group:

Amounts
BRalance ' Balance Due Within

June 30,2010 lssued Retired June 30, 2011 One Year

Compensated absences
payable $510,515 $134.342 $76.807 $568,050

Bonds payable 11,083,000 4,768,000 1,270,600 14,581,000 $1,495,000
Capital leases payable 128.435 42955 85,480 42.955
$11,721,950 $4.902.342 $1.389.762 $15.234.530 $1.537.955

A. Bonds Payable:

Bonds are authorized in accordance with State law by the voters of the municipality through referendums. Alf bonds
are retired in serial installments within the statutory period of usefulness. Bonds issued by the Board are general
obligation bonds.
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NOTE 6. LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS, (continued)

Principal and interest due on serial bonds outstanding is as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total
2012 $1,495.000 $650,667 $2,145,667
2013 1,550,000 559,660 2,109,660
2014 1,625,000 484,960 2,109,960
2015 1,695,000 406,900 2,101,900
2016 1,730,000 326,330 2,056,330 -
2017 1,330,000 254,643 1,584,643
2018 485,000 214,455 699,455
2019 500,000 194,865 694,865
2020 520,000 174,065 694,065
2021 525,000 151,915 676,915
2022 538,000 129,602 667,602
2023 245,000 106,303 351,303
2024 255,000 96,502 351,502
2025 265,000 86,303 351,303
2026 275,000 75,702 350,702
2027 285,000 64,703 349,703
2028 300,000 53,302 353,302
2029 310,000 40,928 350,928
2030 325,000 27,752 352,752
2031 328.000 13.940 341.940
Total $14.581.000 $4.113.497 * $18.694.497

B. Capital [eases Payable:

The District is leasing transportation equipment and copying machines under capital leases. All capital leases are
for terms of three to five years. The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these
capital leases, and the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2011.

Year

2012 $42.955

2013 42,525
Total Minimum Lease Payments $85.480
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS

Description of Plans - All required employees of the District are covered by either the Public Employees'
Retirement System or the Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund which have been established by state statute and are
administered by the New Jersey Division of Pension and Benefits (Division). According to the State of New Jersey
Administrative Code, all obligations of both Systems will be assumed by the State of New Jersey should the Systems
terminate. The Division issues a publicly available financial report that includes the financial statements and required
supplementary information for the Public Employees Retirement System and the Teachers' Pension and Annuity
Fund. These reports may be obtained by writing to the Division of Pensions and Benefits, PO Box 295, Trenton, New
Jersey, 08625. :

Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund (TPAF} - The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund was established as of
January 1, 1955, under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 18A:06 to provide retirement benefits, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Teachers' Pension and Annuity Fund is considered a cost-sharing
multiple-emplover plan with a special funding situation, as under current statute, all employer contributions are made
by the State of New Jersey on behalf of the District and the system's other related non-contributing employers.
Membership is mandatory for substantially all teachers or members of the professional staff certified by the State
Board of Examiners, and employees of the Department of Education who have titles that are unclassified,
professional and certified.

Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) - The Public Emplovees' Retirement System (PERS) was established
as of January 1, 1955 under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide retirement, death, disability and medical
benefits to certain qualified members. The Public Employees' Retirement System is a cost-sharing multiple-employer
plan. Membership is mandatory for substantially all full-time employees of the State of New Jersey or any county,
municipality, school district, or public agency, provided the employee is not required to be a member of another
state-administered retirement system or other state or local jurisdiction.

Contribution Requirements - The contribution policy is set by laws of the State of New Jersey and, in most
retirement systems, contributions are required by active members and contributing employers. Plan member and
employer contributions may be amended by State of New Jersey legislation. The pension funds provide for employee
conftributions based on 5.5% for PERS and 5.5% for TPAF of the employee’s annual compensation. Employers are
required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate in all Funds except the SACT. The actuarially determined
employer contribution includes funding for cost-of-living adjustments and noncontributory death benefits in the PERS
and TPAF. In the PERS and TPAF, the employer contribution includes funding for post-retirement medical
premiams.

During the year ended June 30, 2011 for TPAF, which is a cost sharing plan with special funding situations, annual
pension cost equals annual required contribution. For PERS, which is a cost sharing multi-employer defined benefit
pension plan, the annual pension cost differs from the annual required contribution due to the enactment of Chapter
114, P.L. 1997. TPAF employer contributions are made annually by the State of New Jersey to the pension system
on behalf of the Board. PERS employer contributions are made annually by the Board to the pension system in
accordance with Chapter 114, P.1.. 1997.

The Board’s contribution to PERS, equal to the required contributions for each year, were as follows:

Year

Ending
6/30/11 $222.515
6/30/10 171,905
6/30/09 124,682
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NOTE 7. PENSION PLANS, (continaed)

The State of New Jersey contribution to TPAF (paid on-behalf of the District) for normal pension and post retirement
medical benefits were as follows:

Post-
Retirement
Year Pension Medical NCGI
Ending Contributions Contributions Premium
6/30/11 $ ~C - $701,212 $33,014
6/30/10 —& - 676,918 36,042
6/30/09 -0 - 631,332 33,093

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011, the State of New Jersey contritnrted $734,226 to the TPAF for NCGI
premium contributions and post-retirement medical benefits on behalf of the District. Also, in accordance with
N.J.S.A. 18A:66-66 the State of New Jersey reimbursed the District $723,041 during the year ended June 30, 2011
for the employer's share of social security contributions for TPAF members, as calculated on their base salaries. This
amount has been included in the general-purpose financial statements, and the combining and individual fund and
account group statements and schedules as a revenue and expenditure in accordance with GASB 24.

NOTE 8. POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required Teachers’ Pension and Annuity Fund
(TPAF)and the Public Employees’ Retirement System (PERS), respectively, to fund post-retirement medical benefits
for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of credited service or on a disability retirement.
P.L. 2007, ¢.103 amended the law to eliminate the funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the TPAF and
PERS. It created separate funds outside of the pension plans for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical
benefits for retired State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30, 2010, there were 87,288
retirees eligible for post-retirement medical benefits. The cost of these benefits is funded through contributions by
the State in accordance with P.L. 1994 Chapter 62. FFunding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a
prefunding basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994,

The State is also responsible for the cost attributable to P.L. 1992 Chapter 126, which provides free health benefits
tomembers of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a board of education or county college with
25 years of service. In fiscal year 2010, the State paid $126.3 million toward Chapter 126 benefits for 14,050 eligible
retired members.
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NOTE 9. DEFERRED COMPENSATION

The Board offers its employees a choice of the following deferred compensation plans created in accordance with
Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b). The plans, which are administered by the entities listed below, permits
participants to defer a portion of their salary until future years. Amounts deterred under the plans are not available
to employees until termination, retirement, death or unforeseeable emergency. The plan administrators are as
follows:

Equitable State of New Jersey Tax Shelter Annuity
Valic MetLife

NOTE 19. RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors
and emissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

Property and Liability Insurance - The District maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liability,
student accident and surety bonds. A complete schedule of insurance coverage can be found in the Statistical Section
of this Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

Workers’ Compensation Insurance - The District is currently a member of the New Jersey School Boards
Association Insurance Group (the “Group™). The Group provides the District with Workers” Compensation. The
Group is a risk-sharing public entity risk pool that is both an insured and self administered group of school boards
established for the purpose of providing low-cost insurance coverage for their respective members in order to keep
local property taxes at a minimum. Each member appoints an official to represent their respective entity for the
purpose of creating a governing body from which officers for the Group are elected.

As a member of the Group, the District could be subject to supplemental assessments in the event of deficiencies.
If the assets of the Group were to be exhausted, members would become responsible for their respective shares of
the Group’s liabilities.

The Group can declare and distribute dividends to members upon approval of the State of New Jersey Department

of Insurance. These distributions are divided among the members in the same ratio as their individual assessment
related to the total assessment of the membership body.

NOTE 11. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT

A capital reserve account was established by the Borough of Tinton Falls Board of Education for the accumulation
of funds for use as capital outlay expenditures in subsequent fiscal years. The capital reserve account is maintained
in the general fund and its activity is included in the general fund annual budget.
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NOTE 11. CAPITAL RESERVE ACCOUNT, (continued)

Funds placed in the capital reserve account are restricted to capital projects in the district’s approved Long Range
Facilities Plan (LRFP). Upon sobmission of the LRFP to the department, a district may increase the balance in the
capital reserve by appropriating funds in the annual general fund budget certified for taxes or by transfer by board
resolution at year end of any unanticipated revenue or unexpended line-item appropriation amounts, or both. A
district may also appropriate additional amounts when the express approval of the voters has been obtained either
by a separate proposal at budget time or by a special question at one of the four special elections authorized pursuant
to N.J.S.A. 19:60-2. Pursuant to N.J.A.C. 6A:23A-14.1(g), the balance in the account cannot at any time exceed the
local support costs of uncompleted capital projects in its approved LRFP.

The activity of the capital reserve for the July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 fiscal vear is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2010 $1,926,164
Interest Earnings 975
Deposits:

Transter by Board Resolution, June 20, 2011 360,000
Withdrawals

Budget Appropriation (1,718,765}
Ending Balance, June 30, 2011 $568.374

NOTE 12. EMERGENCY RESERVE ACCOUNT

The emergency reserve is used to accumulate funds in accordance with N.LS.A. 18A:7F-41¢(1) to finance
unanticipated general fund expenditures required for a thorough and efficient education. Unanticipated means
reasonably unforeseeable and shall not include additional costs caused by poor planning. The maximum balance
permitted at any time in this reserve is the greater of $250,000 or 1% of the general fund budget not to exceed one
million dollars. Deposits may be made to the emergency reserve account by board resolution at vear end of any
unanticipated revenue or unexpended line item appropriation or both. Withdrawals from the reserve require the
approval of the commissioner unless the withdrawal is necessary to meet an increase in total health care costs in
excess of four percent.

The activity of the emergency reserve for the July 1, 2010 to June 30, 2011 fiscal year is as follows:

Beginning balance, July 1, 2010 $250.000
Ending balance, June 30, 2011 $250.000
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NOTE 13. MAINTENANCE RESERVE ACCOUNT

A maintenance reserve account was established by the Board of Education by inclusion of $66,599 in the 2002-2003
budget. The account is maintained in the general fund. The maintenance reserve account is used to accumulate funds
for the required maintenance of a facility in accordance with the EFCRA (N.J.A.A. 18A:7G-9). EFCFA requires that
upon district completion of a school facilities project, the district must submit a plan for the maintenance of that
facility. All such plans must include a provision for a maintenance reserve fund. The balance as of June 30, 2011
is $907,355.

NOTE 14, FUND BALANCE APPROPRIATED

General Fund [Exhibit B-1] - Of the $9,069,333 General Fund fund balance at June 30, 2011, $2,277,928 is
reserved for encumbrances; $3,876,284 is reserved as excess surplus in accordance with N.J.S. A, 18A:7F-7
($1,218,276 of the total reserve for excess surplus has been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the
year ending June 30,2012); $568,374 has been reserved in the Capital Reserve Account; $907,355 has been reserved
in the maintenance reserve account; $250,000 has been reserved in the Emergency Reserve Account; $485,918 has
been appropriated and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30,2012, and $703,474 is unreserved
and undesignated.

Debt Service Fund - Of the $3,959 Debt Service Fund fund balance at June 30, 2011, $146 has been appropriated
and included as anticipated revenue for the year ending June 30, 2012 and $3,813 is restricted for debt service.

NOTE 15. CALCULATION OF EXCESS SURPLUS

In accordance with N.J.S.A. 18A:7F-7, as amended by P.L. 2004, ¢.73 (§1701), the designation for Reserved Fund
Balance — Excess Surplus is a required calculation pursuant to the New Jersey Comprehensive Educational
Improvement and Financing Act of 1996 (CEIFA). New Jersey school districts are required to reserve General Fund
fund balance at the fiscal year end of June 30 if they did not appropriate a required minimum amount as budgeted
fund balance in their subsequent years” budget. The excess fund balance at June 30, 2011 is $2,658,008.

NOTE 16. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Board and the Board’s attorney advises us that there are no pending or threatened litigation, unasserted claims
Or assessments.

NOTE 17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In July of 2011, the District issued $2,150,000 Refunding School Bonds. The bonds, together with an initial
cash deposit of $743,834 from the Capital Project Fund, was issued to advance refund all the outstanding
2002 School Bonds of the District issued in the principal amount of $4,683,000 and dated March 2, 2002,
and to pay the costs of issuance of the Bonds. The Refunding Bonds mature on March 15 of each year and
bear interest at rates from 3.00% to 5.00% payable each March 15 and September 15 until maturity.
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Exhibit C-3

Tinton Falls School District
Required Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparison Schedule
Nete to Required Supplementary Information
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Note A - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Inflows and Outflows and
GAAP Revenues and Expenditurces

Special
General Revenue
Jund Trund

Sources/inflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "revenue"
from the budgetary comparison schedule [C-11&[C-2] 23,402,647 896,282
Difference - budget to GAAP:
Grant accounting budgetary basis differs from GAAP in that
encumbrances are recognized as expenditures, and the related
revenue is recognized. NONE NONE

State aid payment recognized for GAAP statements in
the current year, previously recognized for budgetary .
purposes. 415,583

State aid payment recognized as revenue for budgetary

purposes, and differs from GAAP which does not recognize

this revenue until the subsequent year when the State

recognizes the related expense (GASB 33). (284,822)

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balances - governmental funds. [B-2] 23,533,408 896,282

Uses/outflows of resources
Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total outflows” from: the
budgetary comparison schedule : [C-1]&]C-2] 21,748,105 896,282
Differences - budget to GAAP NONE NONE
The district budgets for claims and compensated absences
only to the extent expected to be paid, rather thar on the
modified accrual basis. [Not applicable in this example |
Encumbrances for supplies and equipment ordered but
not received are reported in the vear the order is placed for
budgetary purposes, but in the year the supplies are received
for financial reporting purposes.
Transfers to and from other funds are presented as cutflows of
budgetary resources but are not expenditures
for financial reperting purposes.
Net transfers {outflows) to general fund

Total expenditures as reposted on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmental funds |B-2] 21,748,105 806,282
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Exhibit F-1

Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund
Summary Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budgetary Basis
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues and Other Financing

Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant $ 910,740
Bond proceeds and transfers ' 4,768,000
Interest on Investments 2,913
Transfer from capital reserve 1,718,765
Transfer from capital outlay -
Total revenues 7400418

Expendifures and Other Financing

Uses
Purchased professional and technical services 323,313
Land and Improvements -
Construction Services 1,978,540
Equipment Purchases -
Total expenditures 2,301,853
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures 5,098,565
Transfers out (207,913)
Fund balance - beginning 1,405,888
Fund balance - ending $ 6,296,540
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Revenues and Other Financing
Seurces
State Sources - SCC Grant
Bond proceeds and transfers
Contribution from private source
Trapsfer from capital reserve
Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services
Land and Improvements
Construction Services
Equipment purchases
Total expenditures

Transferred to Debt Service

Excess (deficiency} of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost -

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Projeci Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Addition to Middle School
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

$

Prior Periods

Current Year

Totals

Exhibit F-1a

Revised
Authorized
Cost

1,596,306
4,463,000

1,596,306
4,463,000

1,596,306
4,463,000

6,059,306

6,059,306

6,059,306

4,915,472

4,915,472

6,059,306

4,815,472

4915472

6,059,306

195,000

205,000

400,000

948,834

$

(205,000) $

743,834

SP 20221
12/11/2001

3/15/2002
$4,463,000
$4,463,000
$6,060,000
$6,060,000

0.00%

100%
5/31/2006
5/31/2007
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Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
MiddEe School Roof Replacement '
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant
Bond proceeds and transfers
Contribution from private source
Transfer from capital reserve
Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services
Land and Improvements
Construction Services
Equipment purchases
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Aithorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Exhibit F-1b

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
$ 137,367 § - 137,367 137,367
266,000 - 266,000 266,000
403,367 - 403,367 403,367
393,158 - 393,158 403,367
393,158 - 393,158 403,367
$ 10,209 % - 10,209 -

5185-070-04-2000
7/19/2004

NA

NA

NA

$343,418
$403,367

17.46%
7%
8/15/2005
8/15/2005
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Tinten Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund

Exhibit F-1c

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Mahala F. Atchinson Roof Project
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant $ 299943 § - 299,943 299,943
Bond proceeds and transfers - - - -
Contribution from private source - - - -
Transfer from capital reserve - - - -
Transfer from capital outlay 450,000 - 450,000 450,000
Total revenues 749,943 - 749,943 746,943
Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services 48,092 48,092 48,092
Land and Improvements - - - -
Construction Services 500,000 - 500,000 . 701,851
Equipment purchases - - - -
Total expenditures 548,092 - 548,092 749,943
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 5 201,851 8 - 201,851 -

Additional project information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost
Percentage completion
Original target completion date
Revised target completion date

5185-030-05-1000
2/2/2006

NA

NA

NA

$749,858
$749.,943

0.01%
100%
6/30/2006
'9/15/20006
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Exhibit F-1d

Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Mahala F. Atchinson School Fire Alarm
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant b 38,093 % - % 38,093 § 38,093
Bond proceeds and transfers - - - -
Contribution from private source - - - -
Transfer from capital reserve : 85,033 - 85,033 85,033
Transfer from capital outlay _ - - - -
Total revenues 123,126 - £23,126 123,126
Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services - - - -
Land and Improvements - - - -
Construction Services 119,306 - 119,306 123,126
Equipment purchases - - - - -
Total expenditures 119,306 - 119,306 123,126

Excess (deficiency) of revenues :
over (under) expenditures $ 3,820 § - 3% 3,820 $ -

Additional project information:

Project Number 5185-030-04-1000
Grant Date 4/28/2005
Bond Authorization Date NA
Bonds Authorized NA
Bonds Issued NA
Original Authorized Cost $95,233
Revised Authorized Cost , $123,126
Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost 29.29%
Percentage completion 100%
Original target completion date 6/30/2006
Revised target completion date 12/31/2006
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Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund

Exhibit F-1e

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant
Bond proceeds and transfers
Contribution from private source
Transfer from capital reserve
Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Swimming River School Fire Alarm
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Purchased professional and technical services - -

Land and Improvements

Construction Services

Equipment purchases
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
" Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date
- Revised target completion date

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

$ 33,563 % - 33,563 33,563
78,228 - 78,228 78,228

111,791 - 111,791 111,791

111,791 - 111,791 111,791

111,791 - 111,791 111,791

$ - $ : - -

5185-050-04-1000
11/18/2005

NA

NA

NA

$83,908

$111,791

33.23%
100%
6/30/2006
12/31/2006
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Revenues and Other Financing
Sources

State Sources - SCC Grant

Bond proceeds and transfers

Contribution from private source

Transfer from capital reserve

Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services -

A

Land and Improvements

Construction Services

Equipment purchages
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

dditional project information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Tinton Falls Middle School Fire Alarm
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit ¥-1f

- Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

$ 41,922 - 5 41,922 41,922
41,922 - 41,922 41,922

- - - 41,922

- - - 41,922

$ 41,922 - % 41,922 -

5185-070-05-0BAV

NA
NA
NA
$41,922
$41,922

0.00%

0.00%
N/A
6/30/2013
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Tinton Falls School District
, Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Swimming River School Roof Projects
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SCC Grant
Bond proceeds and transfers
Contribution from private source
Transfer from capital reserve
Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Purchased professional and technical services

Land and Improvements

Construction Services

Equipment purchases
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Autborized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Prior Periods

Current Year

Totals

Exhibit F-1g

Revised
Authorized
Cost

338.038

338,038

338,038

338,038

338,038

138,787

338,038

138,787

338,058

138,787

138,787

338,038

§ - 199251 %

199,251

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
$338,038
$338,038

0.00%

41.06%
N/A

6/30/2013
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Exhibit F-1h

Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Improvements to Mahala F. Atchison Elementary School
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources _
State Sources - SDA. Grant - b 464,883 § 464,883 $ 464,883
Bond proceeds and transfers - 1,627,600 1,627,000 1,627,000
Contribation from private source - - - -
‘Transfer from capital reserve - 777,165 777,165 777,165
Transfer from capital outlay - - - -
Total revenues - 2,809,048 2,869,048 2,809,048
Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services - 130,183 130,183 130,183
Land and Improvements - - - -
Construction Services - 1,032,024 1,032,024 1,032,024
Equipment purchases - - - -
Total expenditures - 1,162,207 1,162,207 1,162,207
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ - % 1,706,841 $ 1,706,841 $ 1,706,841

Additional preject information:

Project Number 5185-030-10-1001
Grant Date 9/2/2010
Bond Authorization Date 2/1/2011
Bonds Authorized : $1,627,635

Bonds Issued $1,627,000

Original Authorized Cost 54,008,000
Revised Authorized Cost $4,008,000

Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost 0.00%
Percentage completion 40.51%
Original target completion date N/A
Revised target completion date 6/30/2013
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Exhibit F-1i

Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund
Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Improvements to Swimming River Elementary School
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Revised
" Authorized
Prior Periods Carrent Year Totals Cost
Revenues and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SDA Grant 5 $ - 290,620 $ 290,020 % 290,020
Bond proceeds and transfers - 1,336,480 1,336,480 1,336,480
Contribution from private source - - - -
Transfer from capital reserve - 773,300 773,300 773,300
Transfer from capital outlay - - - -
Total revenues - 2,399,800 2,399,800 2,399,800
Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services - 90,291 90,291 90,291
Land and Improvements - - - -
Construction Services - 634,759 634,759 634,739
Equipment purchases - - - -
Total expenditures - 725,050 725,050 725,050
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ - % 1,674,750 $ L674,750 3 1,674,750

Additional project information:

Project Number 5185-050-10-1002
Grant Date 9/2/2010
Bond Authorization Date 2/1/2011
Bonds Authorized $1.336,780

Bonds Issued $1,336.480

Original Authorized Cost $3,516,800
Revised Authorized Cost $3.516,800

Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost 0.00%
Percentage completion 30.21%
Original target completion date N/A
Revised target completion date . 6/30/2013
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Tinton Falls Schoel District
Capital Projects Fund

Exhibit F-1j

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis
Improvements to Swimming River Elementary School

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Prior Periods Current Year

Totals

Revised
Authorized
Cost

Revenues and Other Financing

Sources _ :
State Sources - SDA Grant 5 5 106,737
Bond proceeds and transfers - 541,320
Contribution from private source - -

Transfer from capital reserve R -

Transfer from capital outlay -

$

106,737
541,320

106,737
541,320

Total revenues - 648,057

648,057

648,057

" Expenditures and Other

Financing Uses
Purchased professional and technical services - 50,054
Land and Iimprovements - -
Construction Services - 216,790
Equipment purchases - -

50,054

216,790

50,054

216,790

Total expenditures - : 266,844

266,844

266,844

Excess {deficiency) of revenues

381,213

381,213

over (under) expenditures 5 - 8 381,213

Additional project information:
Project Number 5185-050-10-1005
Grant Date 9/2/2010
Bond Authorization Date ' 2/1/2011
Bonds Authorized $541,320
Bonds Issued $541,320
Original Authorized Cost $902,200
Revised Authorized Cost $902,200

Percentage Increase over Original

Authorized Cost 0.00%
Percentage completion 41.18%
Original target completion date : N/A
Revised target completion date 6/30/2013
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Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fand

Exhibit F-1k

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources

State Sources - SDA Grant

Bond proceeds and transfers

Contribution from private source

Transfer from capital reserve

Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues

Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Improvements to Tinton Falls Middle School

Purchased professional and technical services -

Land and Improvements

Construction Services

Equipment purchases
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over {under) expenditures

Additional project information:

Project Number

Grant Date

Bond Authorization Date
~ Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued

Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over Original
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Revised

Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

3 b 49,100 $ 49,100 § 49,100
- 1,061,200 1,061,200 1,061,200
- 30,800 30,800 30,800
- 1,141,100 1,141,100 1,141,100
39,100 39,100 39.100
) 83,650 83.650 83,650
- 122,750 122,750 122,750
$ - % 1,018,350 $ 1,018,350 § 1,018,350

5185-070-10-1003

9/2/2010

2/1/2011
$1,061,200
$1,061,200

$1,820,000

$1,820,000

0.00%

10.76%
N/A

6/30/2013
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Tinton Falls School District
Capital Projects Fund

Exhibit F-11

Schedule of Project Revenues, Expenditures, Project Balance, and Project Status - Budgetary Basis

Revenues and Other Financing
Sources
State Sources - SDA Grant
Bond proceeds and transfers
Contribution from private source
‘Transfer from capital reserve
Transfer from capital outlay
Total revenues

FExpenditures and Other
Financing Uses

Purchased professional and technical services -

Land and Improvements

Construction Services

Equipment purchases
Total expenditures

. Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Additional project information:
Project Number
Grant Date
Bond Authorization Date
Bonds Authorized
Bonds Issued
Original Authorized Cost
Revised Authorized Cost

Percentage Increase over QOriginal
Authorized Cost

Percentage completion

Original target completion date

Revised target completion date

Improvements to Administration Building
For the Year Ended June 390, 2011

Revised
Authorized
Prior Periods Current Year Totals Cost

$ - § - $ -3 -
- 202,000 202,000 202,000

- 137,500 137,500 137,500

- 339,500 339,500 339,500

13,685 13,685 13,685

- 11,317 11,317 11,317

- 25,002 25,002 25,002

5 - 5 314,498 § 314,498 § 314,498

5185-070-10-1003

9/2/2010

2/1/2011
$202,000
$202,000

$339,500

$339,500

0.00%

7.36%
N/A
6/30/2013
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Exhibit G-1

Tinton Falls School Distriet
Combining Statement of Net Assets
Enterprise Funds

June 30, 2011
Kindergarten
Food Service "Time -+ Enrichment
Program Program Program Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Eguivalents 322347 278.303 325,187 925,837
Accounts Receivable:
State 224 . 224
Federal . 4,760 4,760
Inventory 9,363 9,363
Total Current Assets 336,694 278,303 325,187 940,184
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital Assets:
Equipment 20,878 20,878
Less Accumulated Depreciation (20,878} _ (20,878)
Total Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated
Depreciation) - - - -
Total Assets 336,694 278,303 325,187 940,184
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities: .
Accounts Payable - 213,281 100 213,381
Deferred Revenue 6,824 30,575 37,399
Total Current Liabilitics 220,105 100 30,575 250,780
Total Liabilities 220,105 100 30,575 250,780
NET ASSETS -
Invested in Capita] Assets Net of
Related Debt - -
Unrestricted 116,589 278,203 264,612 689,404
Total Net Asscts 116,589 278,203 204,612 689,404
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Exhibit G-2
Tinton Falls School District
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets
Enterprise Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Kindergarten
Food Service Time + Enrickment
Program Program Program Taotals
Operating Revenues:
Charges for Services:
Daily Sales - Reimbursable Programs 193,139 ) 193,139
Daily Sales - Non-Reimbursable Programs ' 149,607 149,607
Miscellaneous 3,262 182,109 158,418 . 343,789
Total Operating Revenues : 346,008 182,109 158,418 686,535
Operating Expenses: :
Cost of Sales 206,132 206,132
Salaries 172,689 139,658 73,298 385,045
Supplies and Materials 36,762 1634 748 39,165
EBmployee Benefits 18,983 24,836 13,048 56,867
Miscellaneous Expense 10,240 1,680 1,685 13,905
Total Operating Expenses 444 806 167 323 89.080 701,714
Operating Income (Loss) (98,798) 14,281 69,338 {15,179)
Non-operating Revenues (Expenses):
State Sources:
Stats Scheol Lunch Program 4,643 4,643
Federal Sources:
National Schoo! Lunch Program. 101,942 101,942
Food Distribution Program 17,443 17,443
Total Non-operating Revenues (Expenses) . 124,028 - - 124,028
Income (Loss) Before Contributions & Transfers 25,230 14,281 69,338 108,849
Transfers In {Out) -
Clange in Net Assets 25230 14,281 ) 69,338 108,849
Total Net Assets - Beginning 91,359 263,922 228274 580,555
Total Net Assets—Ending 116,589 278,203 . 264,612 689,404
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Tinton Falls School District
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

Enterprise Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers
Payments to employees
Payments for Miscellaneous Expenses
Payments to Food Service Management Company
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State Sources
Federal Sources
Local Sources
Net Cash Provided by (Used for) Non-Capital Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances—Beginning of Year
Balances—End of Year

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided
(Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating Income (Loss) .
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
{(Used for) operating activities:
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Revenue
(Increase) Decrease in Inventory
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts Payable
Total Adjustments
WNet Cash Provided by (Used for) Operating Activities

Exhibit G-3

Kindergarten
Food Service Time + - Enrichment
Program Program Program Totals
352,832 182,109 158,418 693,359
(139,658) (73,298) (212,956)
{65,985) (29,606) (18,477) (114,068)
(178,712) {178,712)
108,135 12,845 66,643 187,623
4,915 4915
143,949 143,949
148864 - - 148,864
256,999 12,845 66,643 336,487
65,348 265,458 258,544 589,350
322,347 278,303 325,187 025 837
{58,798) 14,281 69,338 (15,179)
6,824 6,824
(3,327) (3,327}
203,436 (1,436) (2,695) 189,305
206,933 (1,436) (2,695) 202,802
108,135 12,845 66,643 187,623
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FIDUCIARY FUND




Exhibit H-1

Tinton Falls School District
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
June 390, 2011
Agency
Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 75,396
Total assets 75,396
LIABILITIES
Payable to student groups 70,633
Payroll deductions and withholdings 4,763
Total liabilities 75,396
NET ASSETS _ ' -
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Exhibit H-2
Tinton Falls School District
Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

N/A
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ELEMENTARY SCHOOLS:

Atchinson

Swimming River

Tinton Falls

Tinton Falls Athletic Fund

Tinton Falls School District
Stirdent Activity Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements

For the Year Ended June 30, 2011

Exhibit H-3

Accounts

Balance Cash Cash Payable Balance
July 1, 2010 Receipts Disbursed June 30, 2011 June 30, 2011
11,726 5,844 1,874 15,696
4 5390 1,977 6,507
54,050 18,736 24,416 48,370
54 9,558 9612 -
70,420 36,115 35,902 - 70,633
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Tinton Falls School District
Payroll Agency Fund
Schedule of Receipts and Disbursements
For the Year Ended June 30,2011

Exhibit -4

Balance Cash Cash Balance
July 1, 2010 Receipts Disbursed June 30, 2011
Net Payroll 3 8,088,694 8,088,691 6
Payroll Deductions '
and Withholdings , 17 5,904,350 5,899,610 4,757
20 13,993,044 13,988,301 4,763
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LONG-TERM DEBT
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STATISTICAL SECTION




STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED) - INTRODUCTION

J SERIES

Contents

5
a
<

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader
understand how the district’s financial performance and
well-being have changes over time. J-1 to J-5

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess
the district’s most significant local revenue sources, the '
property tax. J-6 to J-9

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess
the affordability of the district’s current levels of outstanding
debt and the district’s ability to issue additional debt in the
future. : J-10 to J-13

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators
to help the reader understand the environment within which _
the district’s financial activities take place. J-14 to J-15

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to
help the reader understand how the information in the
district’s financial report relates to the services the district
provides and the activities it performs. J-16 to J-20

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is
derived from the comprehensive annual financial reports
(CAFR) for the relevant year. The district implemented GASB
Statement 34 in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2003; schedules
presenting district-wide information include information
beginning in that year,



STATISTICAL SECTION (UNAUDITED)

Introduction to the Statistical Section

Financial Trends

J-1
J-2
I-3
J-4
J-5

Net Assets by Component

Changes in Net Assets

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
General Fund Other Local Revenue by Source

Revenue Capacity

J-6
J-7
J-8
J-9

Debt Capacity

J-10
J-11
J-12
J-13

Assessed Value and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates

Principal Property Taxpayers

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debt
Legal Debt Margin Information

Demographic and Economic Information

J-14
I-15

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers

Operating Information

J-16
J-17
J-18
J-19
J-20

Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Function/Program
Operating Statistics

School Building Information™*

Schedule of Allowable Maintenance Expenditures by School Facility
Insurance Schedule



SIpny Ja1gs1g ‘e0nog

Yo g8V 10 Uonejuawweldi eyl 0} Juenbesqns sieeA ay} 1900 A|UO 2INPSYIS SIYL BION

S00'198'ee FOF'FSE" 08 0821002 8Z6'25061 GS6 68E° LY 118'P80'GL wZL'68FEL 175 FPS 0L 22628’
ivS'6rs £69'060 Ge9'sen’'t 18’6y GE0ELE 680'FLO 8556'520°1L LSPELE’)L £90'025')
§GE'980 7L £80'089'6 Zr0'619'04 PLELOO'LL 9£9'ZL6'6 G0L'ZES'8 ¥6G'GPE'D 9zL'zgL's 61225
00L's¥o’e 229'€R6'6 £99°79E'8 208'LPS'L LBE'FB6'9 £1£'886'g ZLE'L1GY PGB°BE0Y L98'0Er'e
FOV'680 $65'088 969" LY 105’068 861228 125ehe 918'691 GLLGLY z60'291
POP'629 555'086 e L0S'06E 861'¢ee 1Z5'ePE 9L5'651 GGl Z60'291
109'129'22 806'CLL 5] PLO'ZHG 6L 3Zk'299'e) 154'448'91 ¥86'0¥e L 209'6ZE'2L ZLLLZV'0L 088’01,
(zce'68) 2CL0LL 596°095 LI 0} 0p8'oL zog'nle ZP0'998 289°96)'1 116°288"1L
g5e'980 vl £80'089'5 Zy0'BLE0L FLE'Z00'L) OEQ'ELE' Gob'zes's ¥65'G¥B'0 9zL'Z8l's Z8Y'ZT6'T
001'5¥0'8 8BO'ER6'5 £99'792'8 SOR'LPS'L 1BE'¥6E'9 LIE'8ES'S LB LLG'Y PS6'8F0'Y L9E'0EY'E
[%it4 0Lz 6002 8002 1002 9002 5002 002 £00Z

‘ag aunp Bulpuz Jeay oSy

payipneun
{Fugunoooe jo sjseq fensooe}
SIBQ4 [EISI4 QUIN 18T
wauodwon AQ sjessy JoN

LOILSIA TOOHIS §7774 NOLNIL 40 HONOHOE

)9Sy 19N IDUISIT (€10,

psjoLsaiun)

pasay

1990] PEIBISY 10 18N 'S1essy [ENdED) Ul pelseAU|
BpI-32135Iq

joy adij-sseuisng B0l

pajaIsalun
paioLsey
192Q poje|oY 4O 19N ‘siessy |ende) ul pajseau;
sanalay adfy-ssaulsng

10y |BIUBLLLIIBACE) [E)0 |

paiosalun
pejoinsay
199G PaJEIPY 4O 19N ‘§jessy [eNdED Ul paisany)
SAPIAISY [BJUALIUIBAOD

-89 -



¥51'20§€ GzT'esT'e 0gl'ole’g 609499 oLvr'ogs'e 18€'719'C 196'18¢e'C ¥69°252°C €ag'oly'e sanusndy Wielfold yousiq 1gjoL

£95°018 9z8'808 516'208 SI8'ELL €6.'164 090'86. 20B'0EG 969619 PFE 109 sanuaAsy Webold sennioy adij-ssauisng |ejo )
601281 G¥'¥LI 9cEpLlL 169'1L81 511861 618'602 218'90¢ GOB'VEL 609 +tE el
gL¥'85 ) 806°6G) 629'¥5L 02s'zEl 6¥C'LEL £0zZ' 211 slyoLug uspeBiapury
§20'¥T1 vZrivLl 62.'s0L 8re' 16 £L5'66 £80'801 Gig'oll 6821 G129kl suornguuey pue sjuglo Bunersdo
800'9+E 9/6°29¢ Le0'ese 05e'29E ZLB'G9e G68'09¢ 89.'20¢ LER'65T 0z§°'00€ 80JAag poo4

:sa01M95 o) sebfueyn
:SapINIDY edAj-sseursng

1651697 BBEGSY L G9Z'80G ¥64'068" | 198511 1Ze918°L §99'05/°L 9662891 BSC6¥L | SENURADY WeIB0Id SeNIANDY [EJUSLLLISADS) [BJo )
165 L6Y'T BBE'BSY'L G9Z'80G | y6.L'068'| 219'867°1- 128'918°L 599'9G4°L B66'2€9'L BETBYL')L suonnquiuey pue sjuels Bupesedo
SONIANDY [EJUBSLILIBAOD)
sanuaady weibold
GB8'CE. VT 9L4'626'6Z £62'/02'92 ZEP'8E0'9T 809°188'%Z 56/ 789'¢ GG6 /Gl 've BrZ'a8L' 1T 0/¥'LE0'TE sasuadx3 joLsiq (B30
vLLLOL [76'204 880221 €891 L8901 0gl'ges S6F7'F09 879'6£9 9L¥'ote sasuadxgy sayaloy adA-ssauisng (g0l
080'68 27076 059'%01 GvG'GH 075'c8 BEY'gY weifeld Juswyouus uspeBiapupy
92849 A k= GLi'sGl 800'85 ) r' L8l £80'081 ¥S¥LOL rLI'GLE 966'G1Z +aul
808"y £6E' /57 6.6'00F ZeL ISk 6LGLSY 86'2oF LrO'eht ¥Livey 0zr'ock aolAIeg pood
‘salADY adAl-ssaursng
L8l LE0'¥T 685'928'%C ¥L2'08¥ 52 6¥4'928°62 1SLPOLPE GOO'EGE'ZE 09¥'205°8E 12K 8PS 0T $40'628"12 sasuadx] SaNIAILY |EIUSWILIBAOL) (R0 |
818'cE8 Z8v'6ls 8/¢'52L £19'60L 182°389 192'¥E9 161819 §98'L65 255425 uojenadsg nmﬁuo__mcaw
788'695 976'39% OFE'2Z9 184'€89 866'62. 729'v98 295°119 BLZ'GS0'L 88.'F6E'L 192 uuey-Bua Uo JS8IaUPN
6aL'0L 289Gt ¥I5'F6L 01696 I8G°LLLL 619'% s(qepsldapun-Aepno [e)deg
oLs'iLs'y B31'G9¥'y P 2ee'y G000 F ZZ0'vas'y Lll'era'e z8l'eat's crLLeT'e LF200T'E sjysuag pejesojeun
- LLL'BL 620'eeZ GGE'LLE seolueg Hoddng JaL0 pue ssaujsng
209'282'1 FE6'E58°1 1£1'626'L 118'6v8'L ¥S5'eTL') 798'869'} £88'888°1 AT A 298°20.L') ucgepodsuel | |idng
168°StL"L GEP'ERRL Obs'Ge8'| ¥92'9¢6'1 488°126') 261601} 98L'0LL'L ¥ig'ees'L GEB'8ES’) soueUSUB pUE sUoteledd Jue|d
059'+8¢ 121688 165'028 £12'6Z¢8 172692 180'96Z ABojoutoa] o] UILIPY g S82IAI9G JenuR)
¥58'€26 68+'208 GB80'/88 15¥'228 £6R'66.L £99'G6/ 1£2'696 0eL'L86 SZ¥'8lLL SO0IMBS AARASIUIPY [00US
L' ve9 oLz'zes ar6'684 Z0v' 419 861°509 £86'809 LZ¥'G19 96.'2TF 92084 SBOIMBG SARNSILILIPY [2IBUsg)
§50'29.'2 £89'G06'T £v0'988'7 95/'879' LYETPYT 180'6LT'E £69'2FE'C S0L'9TF'T FAWR 1A $80/AJBG pejejey UoIoNIsU| g Juspns
20%'8EG FOL'bG 1TT'P5s 6A8'999 ziTseL ¢L1'TE6 9cL'810%)L 295'1 e g€l /08 ucpin
s99IA0g Hoddng
96zl Tre'vel zZoz'LL 1 GF'ELL 616701 2rS'L6 £91'26 020'56 9/8'GY LoonsLy a0
$95'642 ¥99'.18 GO6'vLE 1£8'64¢8 9.6'L1g 9£9'S¥T 018292 155'482 GaC'v.LZ uononasy| [e1oadg Jeyio
L¥G'608°L €LZ'690'C 985'7O¥' LPr'998'z g0L'LEL'E L6¥'2G6') 1G9'0GL ) ££6'689°L 108'68.'L uoneonpl [epedg
88/'6G6L'2 £OL'8Er . 595'9%°2 L96'FLE'L ¥I0'8ELL 868'106'9 £ZL'920°L G8L'SER'S 5118689 ig|nBey
aogordisuy|
ISBIHANOY |BIUSLULIBACE)
sosuadxy
110z 0Loz 6002 2002 2002 9002 5002 ¥00Z £00Z

‘0g sunp Bulpug Jeey 23Sy

pappneun
(Bugunoose jo sjseq jenioae)
s1ea), [eastq sulN Ise
s19s8sY J9N Ul sefueyn
13Y1SIG TOOHJS STTV4 NOLNLL 40 HONOWOd

o
b
=



S)IpnY 10L181] $92IN0G

#0# SYO 10 uoneuawadwl a4} o} Juenbasgns Jeak auy) SIeA00 AjUo S|Npayos S| 8JoN

L#G'900'E yEl'LEE LOY'v96 ¥i6'291') 612'660°C £8E'GBS'Z LIG'FP6'L 018'969'C £8.'069
6¥g'80L 668'S0L IR £0£'89 129'8L 1108 Lri'ey (ze1'02) QYT
269'/68'C Gee'1eT avz'088 1L8'v60'L 8p0'120'2 9lE'115C 9¢8'L06') Zr6'oLL'T 6G6E'/99
79T ST T GZ¥B6G €T PLY'GGR' YT 16L'9¢81'6e LI6'0Sr ¥E G6.'G90°ET 596'799'€Z 5987912 0/971L08°08
- - 6LZ'€ 1Ll G64'C 18081 ¥ee'9l - 005'8
61Z'C 1219 G6L'C 1808 7eE 9l 006'g
28T IETHE STV 86G'€Z 661'258'%2 9z908L6g Z8lL'iZrve YLLLPIET 1£9'849'¢E 59¢2E9' e 0.1'€62'02
(11691) (121°9} (g62°c) (180'21) (recol) (c662) {0058)
£08'Gl (569°491) (soe'sl)
7E£0'90L
(000021}
981’ 1S BSP'G9 £89'18 TrLLLL B8'0F 9201€ ¥9.'068 y1Z'08¢ ¥66'601
826'9¢ 121'6¢ 8+0'08L ¥86'05F ©/5'695 z8Z'v1E 999'0trL Sov'r GEO'201
19L'PE £01'98L Z85'00L 2/5'VEL 08’291 vic'80L 119'Lg 9pL vl ZEL'LOL
9g'10Z'v 08Z'vEL'Y LLB'OrL'S ¥az'eos's 620'02E'S 8r6'eZL'G £22'0.8'v £O6'89.L'Y 9.0'6EE' Y
90¥'GEG'L 12€'425'L TiV'ETLE LAgERL L 69¥'GrLL £99'016°L 1£8°168'L 864'280'T 08F'€0L'Z
18¥'188'8) 822'089°L4 Frr'08G°LL £E1'Z8T 1L 0St'945°9) srr'ziL ol FOZ' 1210} LLEPEE YL 166'6¥5°CL
(vliocz’lz) ~ (l6T'192'62) (£20°168°¢2) (ceg’ese’e)  (agZ'lee’ee)  (80¥'0L0'Ley  (ese'oz’tz)  (Geg'see'sl)  (Lsg'ole'sl)
6+8'501 669'G01 9/8'08 ZEL'Z9 8/8'%1 0£6'69 107’92 (zeL'02) 8T8 ¥l
(065'BEE°12) (061'29€°82} (6¥6°1456'82) (sse'sev'ez)  (peL'o0pze)  (8€8'98L’L2) (564'012'12) (ezF's16'gL) (G18'529'6L)
L0z 030z 6002 3002 1002 9002 5002 ¥00z £00Z
‘gg auny Bulpug Jea, |easid
pajipneun

o
h
=l

(Bununoaze Jo siseq Jenisoe)

SIea ) |BIS14 BUIN ISET
s1@ssy JaN ul sabuey)p

12R1SI TOOHDS $717vd NOLNIL 30 HoOROYWOs

JoeId [Byo L
saNAoY edAl-sseu|sig

s)assy 1o uj abueyn

apm-oLysig (ejo L

sapaoy adAi-ssauisng (B0
sialsuel ]

SAIPARDY 20A)-ssauIsSNg

SARAOY [BIUSLULLISAOD) [B10L

sIa)SUEE
s)98sYy Jo |esodsiq uo {sseT) / :_m%_

weunsnlpy jassy epdeg

199p wiisl-6uol jo Buipunyat Uo 507

BLUODU| SNoaUe||@0sA
SJUSLWISIAU| L0 JSIBW|
paAlgaay voning

PIY 8lelS pue [erapa pal)saln
0IAIOG 1G9(] J0) PSINST SOXE |
sasoding [eJauag) Jo) palne] sexe] Auedold

SAPALROY [EJUSLULISADS

sjassy JoN I sabueys Jaylo pue SoNUdABY [EIoUSD)

asuadx3 19N apim-ousid @il

sellAoYy edA-ssauisng
SBIPAINOY |EJUBLUULIDADD)
anuaaay{asuadxs) JoN



SUPNY 19181 [B0In0g

o gSVO 30 Loneuawaldw ay) o) Juanbasgns sieak au) $19A02 AUO Hnpayas sy BloN

667°00E9 605" L0F' | BZ6ELY ) 09r88Y’ L 106°E25 96z 708"l GZP'oes’) 18¥ okl 662028 |
656'C
0FS'062'9
159’1 FAiTArAN avs'29 12660 ¥62'791 9GL'sLL g18'0lL LLS'0L
888'50¥'| 185°L0V'L ¥L602Y L yoz'zee'l G94°97¥° L 0K'eBE’ ) 194'vb L G00'209'L
(+£6°2) {re6'e) (res'e) (y£50) (zvo'y)
05988 L2106l 162'08 9E8'e6T SZi'oYL
£EE'6O0'6 1€L6106 9zr' 7 LY 0L 11284201 80€'580'6 0641652 991°8EG'9 1787106 GCL'086'C
¥Lre0.L
216'6ay
926°212'T
£10'209's
698'GLY c1E'60Z'L £26'75L 65069 186'c08 166'92Z°L 81659 Zre'eis')
Z98'CrS'8 £LL'G0Z'6 $S8'8L5°6 6ZL'8PY'8 609°12L'9 691 °60¥°S seg'ser's £61'2Z0L°)
Loz oL0E 6002 8002 1002 9002 S00Z 00z £00Z
.Dm aung mc_—u—_m Aea ) feosld
paypneun

{Bununoaoe Jo SISEq JBIIIOE PajIpot}
siea A [EIS]d FJUIN 15eT
SpUNJ JRJUSWILLIZAGE) SIDUE|EE pung
LORESIA TOOHIS STV NOLNIL 40 HONOWOg

s1assy 19N SAPMDY sdAl-ssauEng ejo |

pund adlneg 1asQ

pund spaloid jepden
uf papoday ‘pelousay

s0lARS K20

pun4 sjoafoid |epded

pung snusasy |ejoads
e palioaday ‘paatasasiun

paniosay
SpUN [BJUSWLISACE JBWI0 Y

puny [elausc) [elo L

paubisseun
paublssy
papitiwoy
papiasay
pantesalln
paniesay
pung jeJaudn

S92



‘sEoMIBg poddns 1By PUE SSEUISNE St Seojalsg Hoddng Syl W paligiles atem ABOIOULYDS | UCIBULIOI| SARRASIL|UPY PUB B0jA18S [RIUBD) "GOOZ'(E SUNP O 10t
‘GO0z 0E BUNpP pus JesA uym BuiiuiBsq psppe s1am SUoHEoyisSeIo JUnosoe ABOJOLYos | UCIRULICIU| SAlJRNSIUILURY PUB 218G [enue)
"Rejino |eydeo ssa| sainypuadxe rejo) sie sainjipusdxs [eldesuon ejoN

YiEL Ykl %l L %987, %584 %15 %698 %6004 %9l 0k %198
ZES CPE'Y (a50°Lor 1) 21489 ZEOEGE L S6L'GIY ERr 44 21Tese'L 082'020'C (20z'216%) 1€06619
¥80'164 ' {Li58l) (121'9) (g618) [ 019’y 166'25¢ (00578} PG LES Y
PHE'ESL 006'96¢ £48'vL
0C0'99L'F [Hepera
{ri9'cr8' ) {¥8l'ees) {2i8'1) (gza'9l) {o82'e) {627'089) (926'8€) [{3%:534)] (ceg)
8L9'9E6'L +21'2ES 26L'01 26299 20922 glg'olL {oos'®)

29%F LG {g50°LoF' 1) $60'c8 £61°651L 065'6LY LI8'6ET) 2985021 £7€'489' (z0.'606') ¥62'969'L
S0P'LEL9C 95 EPPOT 01288492 £BT'9E0'9 G/8'0686'FE SPGere ¥ £96'GEE"T £E0'Z09' LT 119'086'6C £60'982 12
691126 GEL'ERS S6E' 1LY SLLTES 1G1'0FL £2C'T8L 122289 096'£90'L AN £90°596
ooo'elet 000°0LE ) 000'002'L 000 00z' s 000°68 'S 000's61°) 000'sZE" L 000'0£0'L 000'090'% ooo'nls
zZol'erb'e 000FEZ L 86E S0V £70'908 £.£'60% 6¥5'000°1 1828 088’29 Y0ty 8LLLGY
186'65Y'Y G9T'CRYY 159'a1E'Y gt ess'y 68t |2ty 2E9'PELE ZoL'oar'e £FL'LBT'E wzoce's 5/9'165'2

L6 820'cee SGE'LLE CLE" 292
309'2LL'E PEB'ESE L 1£2'6Z6'} 218°6re' L 691°298"1 299'268°L £29'898'L B2E'VTL') 8987204 80L'€LLL
59L'8EL'E 2w e otL'0re'L PAZ R ¥oE'61L6'L B6E'ELE’) 962'80L"L 2B66'028'L Le8°925'L BGE' 789
088v0e PrAN:i: 155'02¢ ¢iz'6eE lee's9z 160'96Z
PSR'EEB 861306 580'288 iy ] £68'667 £99'S6L 9/1'e60°L Y26 2e0' 2887210 BL2°0S0'L
W PES 9LZ'Z8G 8r6'695 SLE'9lg 109208 S26'F00 1Zr'G19 Zly'9gs 190" 115 262082

966'698 Firdig )
neEr'seL'e 261'088%2 909°606'C 198'006'2 LrETrre 180'6L2°2 £69'THTE 901'92¥'z 699", ze4'982'L
ZES1TS YOL PG 122'FSS $68'098 ziz'ges eLL'ees 9EL'8L0"L 395'Lek 2e1'208 [ i

9/8'68 96578
9EB'TLL el 79T iz asint 626701 8Y5'/6 £91'26 020°68 oieloh Thd §v6'9iZ
$95'8/2 89'LLE S06'FLE 1£9'6L8 SLE'LIE 9L9'GHE 04£292 IS5'LEE
1r5'692°L £1E6602 885'290'C L#b'99E'E £olIELe 167'266') 163'062'L £EG'699'L LG8 L leL'ell't
9e8'820'L Pl Lig'ges's 121'681L S0r'GE6"s [HC R A 664'€F6'9 GZL'G8L'S 028 LLE'D 162089
£.8'326'92 [F 2T S0P'1LLZ'9E get'eel’ /e EEERI a4 [7 AN 4 DES 1P5'GC 9GE'69Z'ET 606°060'22 LPEPE'TT

GZ0'tHE 664+'928 LIG'4e6 S/9%08 £OLThL obL'6v6 265'690'} 200'241'1 [ArArA $59'L0L T

L11'006's zzeors'y OLOLL'S SOP'BrS'S fote b s gEL'e68's 968°€95'S £76'SZ¢ S0L 88y 630°020'9
68’581 el 60£'6Z¢ +Ov'LL9 52596t L0'e8S 828'vos 1al'ele 685'892
£P8EE 6l §64' L0261 SL6'E0e'Bl F0OF0'61L s16'12E'8L SLL'EgO'aL loi'ele'st 895'298'91 LEFE59'G1 GLOF06'YL

1102 0102 6002 g00z 1002 9002 5002 ooz €002 2002

i

pagpneun
{Bununosoe jo SISeq [ertiade psijipot)
sresj [easld Uaj jse7
uo}aung Aq sernppuadxy puhd [pUsilIsAD)

L1IMLSIA 1C0HIS STV NOLNEL 40 HONOXOY

"SPI0aSI PUISI(] [83N0g

sain)ipuadxa [eydesuou
Jo sbeyussiad e se 8295 1980

souRleq pund Uf seBUBYD BN

{gasn) seoinog Bupeuld JSYIO RIOL

(payebpng-uou) sesea feiden
sajon Aerodws | jo Bulpung
BumclIog Wol) Spassold
o siapsuel] Suileledg
U| stajsuel) Bunersdo

(se2n) seaunog Buloneuld ;Y0

sainjpuadxy [depun) BAC
sanuaaey 10 (fouspys(Q) sseaxd

seurIpustxg PUn- [BIUISWLIBAOL) [e10]

sefiley] I8Ul0) pue 1ssialu)|
|edoul
80IMBG 198Q)
Kepno eudes
slsusg aafodwy
saojaueg Hoddng Jey)o pue sseulsng
ucljepodsiuel | uspnis
20UBRUAIUIE puUe suolietado
ABoouysa] ol UILpY B sediatag jelual
UGheSIUWPY |00Yos
UO|BNSURLDY [eiaUss
LBIg [euoannsy|
seniAes PalBIsY JUsPnIS
uojn L « uohonlisy
seojaas poddng
feuaiohiisu] Jsyioperosucds-ooyns
uonensUy| Jauio
UolpiuIsy) [eieeds 18y10
|leadg
lenBey
wanonsuy)
sasnypuadxy

SanuUBAsY |10

sa0InN0g [eJepad
$B0IN0G SIRIS
anusAsy 2007 180
Anaxel

SANUIATY

-93 -



BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT

General Fund Other Local Revenue by Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudifed
Fiscal Year interest
Ended June 30, Tuition Income Sale of Land Miscellaneous Toftal
2002 103,935 104,700 59,954 268,589
2003 101,132 102,035 109,994 313,161
2004 74,146 44,466 301,500 84,714 504,826
2005 57,611 146,666 390,764 595,041
2006 108,374 314,282 33,873 456,529
2007 167,380 508,780 33,186 707,348
2008 134,678 420,227 77,663 632,568
2009 100,582 130,048 98,679 329,309
2010 136,707 38,975 65,459 241,141
2011 34,161 24,015 . 51,486 109,662

Source: District records.
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT

Insurance Schedule
June 30, 2011
Unaudited

School Package Policy -
Property - Blanket Building & Contents
Comprehensive General Liability
Comprehensive Automobile Liability
Automobile Physical Damage
Comprehensive Crime Coverage
Disappearance, Destruction, Forgery

Computers and Schedule Equipment -
Data Processing-Hardware
Data Processing-Media/Data
Other (Audio Visual)Equip.& Software
Boiler and Machinery - Property Damage
Umbrella Liability - Umbrella Policy
School Board Legal Liability -

Directors' and Officers' Policy

Public Employee Faithful Performance
Business Administrator Bond
Treasurer Bond

Workers Compensation
Employers Liability
Supplemental Workers Compensation

Employee Benefit Liability

Source: District Records.

Coverage

42,917,553
1M OCC./.2M AGG.
1,000,000
1,000,000
25,000
100,000

935,359
55,000
199,984

Incl. In Property

10,000,000

1,000,000 Each loss

100,000
250,000
250,000

Statutory

2,000,000
52 Week Limit

IM OCC./.3M AGG.
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Exhibit J-20

Deductible

1,000

500

500

500
250

100

5,000

<o

7 Day

1,000



SINGLE AUDIT SECTION




Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr., MBA, CPA, RMA Certified Public Accountanis Newton Office
Steven D. Wielkotz, GPA, RMA 401 Wanaque Avenue 100B Main Street
James J. Cerullo, CPA, RMA Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442 Newton, N.J. 07860
Paul J. Cuva, CPA, RMA 973-835-7900 973-579-3212
Thomas M. Ferry, CPA, RMA Fax 973-835-6631 Fax 973-579-7128
K-1
Page 1 of 2

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Borough of Tinton Falls School District
County of Monmouth, New Jersey

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each
major fund of the Board of Education of the Borough of Tinton Falls School District in the County of
Monmouth as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of the Board of Education of the Borough of Tinton Falls School District in the County of
Monmouth, and have issued our report thereon dated October 28, 2011. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; audit requirements
as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Borough of Tinton Falls School District Board of
Education's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the
purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Tinton Falls School District Board of Education's internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effective of the Borough
of Tinton Falls School District Board of Education's internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency ininternal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
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Honorable President and . k-1
Members of the Board of Education ' Page 2 of2

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
financial reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consnder to be materlal
weaknesses, as defined above.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Borough of Tinton Falls School District Board
of Education's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and,
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards and
audit requirements as prescribed by the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey.

However, we noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported to the Board of
Education of the Borough of Spring Lake in the separate Auditor’s Management Report on Administrative
Findings - Financial, Compliance and Performance dated October 28, 2011,

This report is intended solely for the information of management, the Borough of Tinton Falls Board of

Education, New Jersey State Department of Education and other state and federal awarding agencies and
is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties,

Paul J/ ga/FPA

Licensed Public School Accountant
No. CS00076600

Sonoidl (il Ll e A

FERRAIOLI, WIELKOTZ CERULLO & CUVA, P.A.
Certified Public Accountants

October 28, 2011
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Ferraioli, Wielkotz, Cerullo & Cuva, P.A.

Charles J. Ferraioli, Jr., MBA, CPA, RMA Certified Public Accountants Newton Office
Steven D. Wielkotz, CPA, RMA 401 Wanaque Avenue 100B Main Street
James J. Cerullo, CPA, RMA Pompton Lakes, New Jersey 07442 Newton, N.J. 07860
Paul J. Cuva, CPA, RMA 973-835-7200 973-579-3212
Thomas M. Ferry, CPA, RMA Fax 973-835-6631 Fax 973-579-7128
K-2
Page 1 of 2

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE
TO EACH MAJOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAM AND INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH
OMB CIRCUL AR A-133 AND N.J. OMB CIRCULAR 04-04

Honorable President and

Members of the Board of Education
Borough of Tinton Falls School District
County of Monmouth, New Jersey

Compliance

We have audited the compliance of the Board of Education of the Borough of Tinton Falls School District
in the County of Monmouth with the types of compliance requirements described in the /.S, Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Office
of Management and Budget's State Aid/Grant Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material
effect on cach of its major federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011. Borough of
Tinton Falls School District Board of Education's major federal and state programs are identified in the
summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.
Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major
federal and state programs is the responsibility of the Borough of Tinton Falls School District Board of
Education's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Borough of Tinton Falls School
District Board of Education's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements as prescribed by
the Division of Finance, Department of Education, State of New Jersey; OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations"; and the provisions the New Jersey State
Treasury Circular Letter 04-04 "Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State
Aid." Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 and N.J. OMB Circular 04-04 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Borough of Tinton Falls
School District Board of Education's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the Borough of Tinton
Falls School District Board of Education's compliance with those requirements.

FWCC
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Honorable President and K-2
Members of the Board of Education Page 2 of 2

In our opinion, the Borough of Tinton Falls School District Board of Education complied, in all material
respects, with the requirements referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal and state
programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011.

Internal Control Over Compliance

The management of the Borough of Tinton Falls School District Board of Education is responsible for
establishing and maintaining effective internal control over compliance with requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal and state programs. In planning and performing our
audit, we considered the Borough of Tinton Falls School District Board of Education's internal control over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal or state
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on
compliance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Borough of Tinton Falls
School District Board of Education's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal or state program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance 15 a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that might be significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above.

This report is intended solely for the information of the management and the New Jersey State Department
of Education, other state and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be,
and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Paul J.
Licensed Public School Accountant
No. CS00076600

FERRAIOLI WIELKOTZ CERULLO & CUVA PA.

, Certified Public Accountants F . C C
October 28, 2011 -117 - -
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District K-5
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards Page 1 of 2
and State Financial Assistance

June 30, 2011

NOTE 1. GENERAL

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance present the
activity of all federal and state award activity of the Board of Education, Borough of Tinton Falls School
District. The Board of Education is defined in Note 1 to the Board's basic financial statements. All federal
and state awards received directly from federal and state agencies, as well as federal and state awards passed

through other government agencies is included on the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State
Financial Assistance. :

NOTE 2. BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

The accompanying Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance are
presented on the budgetary basis of accounting with the exception of programs recorded in the food service
fund, which are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. These bases of accounting are described
in Notes 2(C) and 2(D) to the Board’s basic financial statements. The information in these schedules is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, “Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.” Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may
differ in amounts presented in or used in the preparation of the basic financial statements.

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The basic financial statements present the general fund and special revenue fund on a GAAP basis.
Budgetary comparison statements or schedules (RST) are presented for the general fund and special revenue
fund to demonstrate finance-related legal compliance in which certain revenue is permitted by law or grant
agreement to be recognized in the audit year, whereas for GAAP reporting, revenue is not recognized until
the subsequent year or when expenditures have been made.

The general fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the modified accrual basis with the
exception of the revenue recognition of the last state aid payment in the current budget year, which is
mandated pursuant to N.J.S.A. 18A:22-44.2. For GAAP purposes, that payment is not recognized until the
subsequent budget year due to the state deferral and recording of the last state aid payment in the subsequent
vear. The special revenue fund is presented in the accompanying schedules on the grant accounting
budgetary basis which recognizes encumbrances as expenditures and also recognizes the related revenues,
whereas the GAAP basis does not. The special revenue fund also recognizes the last state aid payment in
the current budget year, consistent with N.J.S.A. 18A:22-42-2.
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Borough of Tinton Falls School District K-5
Notes to the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal Awards Page 2 of 2
and State Financial Assistance

June 30, 2011

NOTE 3. RELATIONSHIP TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: (continued)

The net adjustment to reconcile from the budgetary basis to the GAAP basis is $130,761 for the general fund
and $-0- for the special revenue fund. See the Notes to Required Supplementary Information for a
reconciliation of the budgetary basis to the modified accrual basis of accounting for the general and special
revenue funds. Awards and financial assistance revenues are reported in the Board’s basic financial
statements on a GAAP basis as follows:

Federal State Total
General Fund $123,928 $4.912,381 $5,036,309
Special Revenue Fund 720,097 92,866 812,963
Capital Projects Fund 910,740 910,740
Debt Service Fund 50,124 50,124
Food Service Fund 119.385 4,643 124,028
Total Financial Awards $963.410 $5.970.754 $6.934.,164

NOTE 4. RELATIONSHIP TO FEDERAL AND STATE FINANCIAL REPORTS

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.

NOTE 5. OTHER

Revenues and expenditures reported under the U1.S.D.A. Food Distribution Program represent current year
value received and current year distributions respectively. The amount reported as TPAF Pension
Contributions represents the amount paid by the state on behalf of the District for the year ended June 30,
2011. TPAF Social Security Contributions represents the amount reimbursed by the state for the employer’s
share of social security contributions for TPAF members for the year ended June 30, 2011,
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K-6

Page 1 of 2
BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued: ‘ unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
1. Significant deficiencies identified that are
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
2. Material weakness(es) identified? yes X no
Noncompliance material to basic financial
statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal Control over major programs:
1. Significant deficiencies identified that are not
congsidered to be material weaknesses? yes X none reported
2. Material weakness(es) identified? ves X no
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: ungualified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with section .510(a)
of Circular A-1337 ves X no
Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
84.027 IDEA Part B Basic
84.173 IDEA Preschool Grants
84.391 ARRA - IDEA Part B
84.392 ARRA - Preschool Grants
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $300.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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K-6
Page 2 of 2

BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011
(continued)

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results, (continued)
State Awards
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs:  $.300.000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: unqualified
Internal Control over major programs:

1. Significant deficiencies identified that are not
considered to be material weaknesses? ves X none reported

2. Material weakness(es) identified? ves X no

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with NJ OMB Circular
Letter 04-04? yes X no

Identification of major programs:

GMIS Number(s) Name of State Program
11-495-034-5120-014 (A)  Transportation Aid
11-495-034-5120-089 (A)  Special Education Categorial Aid
11-495-034-5120-085 (A)  Adjustment Aid
11-495-034-5120-044 (A)  Exiraordinary Aid
11-495-034-5095-002 (A)  Reimbursed TPAF Social Security Contributions
[1-495-034-5095-001 (A)  TPAF Post Retirement Medical
5180-030-10-1001/5185-050-10-1002/
5185-050-10-1005/5185-070-10-1003 SDA School Facilities Projects

Note: (A) - Tested as major program.
Section IT - Financial Statement Findings
None
Section Il - Federal Awards and State Financial Assistance Findings and Questioned Costs

No matters were reported.
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BOROUGH OF TINTON FALLS SCHOOL DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS -
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

Status of Prior Year Findings

There were no prior year audit findings.
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